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(A
2021

20.315 15.315 2038
20 15
15.315
2038 15
20.315 15.315 2038
20 15
20.315 15.315 2038

20 15
86/266



(B

2038

15.315

FATCA

20

FATCA

IRS

87/266

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2038 15

20.315 15.315
15

50



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30
2013 11 29 FATCA
1GA 2014
FATCA
FATCA
FATCA
FATCA FATCA
50 OECD
CRS 2014 10 29
2015 10 16 2016 12 19 2017
CRS 1GA
100 CRS
TIA
TIA
CRS
FATCA CRS
FATCA 2018
12
FATCA

FATCA CRS TIA IRS
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FATCA CRS

FATCA CRS
FATCA CRS
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2015 11

2021
626,823,197.68 96.72
21,268, 246.48 3.28
648,001 ,444.16

( 70,960 ) 100.00
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WA

2021
338,016,944.00 53.18
56,929,681.79 8.96
44,595,763.20 7.02
41,509,559.22 6.53
13,142,645.65 2.07
11,545,056.78 1.82
11,382,948.41 1.79
9,411,566.43 1.48
7,669,106.13 1.21
7,021,916.03 1.10
6,684,961.16 1.05
6,424,640.98 1.01
5,556,346.86 0.87
5,325,418.62 0.84
4,168,102.44 0.66
2,889,779.35 0.45
2,864,843.78 0.45
2,846,677.95 0.45
1,883,275.14 0.30
1,606,044.16 0.25
1,570,788.72 0.25
1,330,668.82 0.21
1,281,666.00 0.20
1,142,312.78 0.18
1,032,112.50 0.16
1,020,900.68 0.16
1,000,126.23 0.16
848,323.71 0.13
760,012.65 0.12
628,853.29 0.10
599,678.97 0.09
582,150.59 0.09
570,733.35 0.09
204,418.37 0.03
594,048,024.74 93.47
33,389,981.97 5.25
3,829.98 0.00
1,457,029.49 0.23
31,929,122.50 5.02
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15,732,798.23 2.48
379,505.24 0.06
2,478,815.70 0.39
12,874,477.29 2.03
9,807,443.28 1.54
9,807,443.28 1.54
3,822,373.69 0.60
3,822,373.69 0.60
1,109,398.82 0.17
1,109,398.82 0.17
30,107.45 0.00
2,755,936.90 0.43
2,786,044 _35 0.44
650,804,795.97 102.40
15,247,494 _61 2.40
(632é?g;%301-36) 100.00
2021

Western Asset Macro
Opportunities 22,220,091.53 25.59 | 568,679,194.27 28.21 | 626,823,197.68 | 96.72
Alternatives Fund, Ltd.

WA
2021

( ) ()

US TREASURY

N/B 1.25 5/50 1.250 | 2050/ /15 45,440,000.00 | 0.95| 43,126,967.80 | 0.85| 38,664,825.11 | 6.08

MEXICAN BONOS 7.750 | 2042/11/13 624,392,000.00 | 0.05 | 31,864,924.87 | 0.05 | 32,000,502.66 | 5.04

7.75 11742
US TREASURY N/ 2.375 | 2051/ /15 14,970,000.00 | 1.04 | 15,535,002.49 | 1.11 | 16,612,021.88 | 2.61
2.375 5/51
suggul\;ggz 7.050 | 2028/ /19 | 1,112,387,000.00 | 0.01 | 16,570,649.41 | 0.01 | 15,481,047.24 | 2.44
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)

5 [ US TREASURY 000 | 2045/ /15 12,280,000.00 | 1.15 | 14,108,311.27 | 1.22 | 14,955,217.16 | 2.35
N/B 3 5745

g | US TREASURY N/ 875 | 2051/ /15 14,580,000.00 | 0.90 | 13,193,153.91 | 0.99 | 14,459,259.38 | 2.28
1.875 2/51

7 | RUSIAORe 150 | 2027/ 7 786,143,000.00 | 0.02 | 13,094,152.65 | 0.01 | 11,488,832.83 | 1.81

8 gggg'A‘OFz 7.7 700 | 20397 716 | 736,772,000.00 | 0.02 | 13,190,207.69 | 0.01 | 10,868,039.56 | 1.71
INDONESIA

9 | cov'T 8.25 250 | 2020/ 715 |135,821,000,000.00 | 0.00 | 9,998,360.40 | 0.00 | 10,609,298.79 | 1.67
5/29

10| pX1AN BONOS 000 | 2047711/ 197,390,000.00 | 0.05 | 10,810,715.54 | 0.05 | 10,327,578.58 | 1.62

17| US TREASURY N/ 125 | 2048/ 715 8,000,000.00 | 1.01| 8,090,389.85 | 1.26 | 10,001,875.04 | 1.59
3.125 5/48

12| US_TREASURY N/ 750 | 2043/11/15 7,207,000.00 | 1.13 | 8,172,085.77 | 1.35 | 9,743,807.71 | 1.53
3.75 11/43

13| US TREASURY 000 | 208/ /31 9,400,000.00 | 1.00 | 9,368,380.94 | 1.00 | 9,397,159.13 | 1.48
N/B 1 7/28
AUSTRALIAN

1| AT 000 | 2047/ /21 10,020,000.00 | 0.84 | 8,405,425.91 | o0.88 | 8,832,292.55 | 1.39

15| INDONESIA GOV 375 | 20347 715 |110,874,000,000.00 | 0.00 | 8,146,730.12 | 0.00 | 8,670,595.96 | 1.36
8.375 3/34

16| US_TREASURY N/ 375 | 2050/ 715 8,670,000.00 | 0.95 | 8,264,208.73 | o0.88 | 7.612,327.71 | 1.20
1.375 8/50

17 | fAZNCON NG 700 | 20607 7 7,080,000.00 | 1.00 | 7,051,147.59 | 0.98 | 6,914,507.12 | 1.09

1g| US TREASURY N/ 125 | 2040/ 715 7,330,000.00 | 0.96 | 7,029,873.31| 0.89 | 6,524,272.62 | 1.03
1.125 8/40
INDONESIA

10| BONESIE 000 | 2030/ 715 | 89,390,000,000.00 | 0.00| 6,332,911.88 | 0.00| 6,489,853.07 | 1.02

20 | INDONESIA 000 | 20277 715 | &5,788,000,000.00 | 0.00 | 6,356,420.47 | 0.00| 6,370,704.37 | 1.00
GOV'T 7 5/27 - ,788,000,000. ) ,356,420. . 370,704 _

21 | PETROBRAS GLOB 999 | 2008/ 727 5,480,000.00 | 1.01 | 5,536,946.34 | 1.14| 6,245,009.48 | 0.98
5.999 1/28
TEVA

22| PHARWACEUC 4.1 100 | 2046710/ 6,923,000.00 | 0.81| 5,588,131.72 | 0.88 | 6,108,604.59 | 0.96
10746

23 F;uggl/;;gzz 250 | 20347 710 | 430,400,000.00 | 0.02 | 6,655,351.49 | 0.01| 6,078,354.90 | 0.96

24| INTESA SANPAOL 875 3,830,000.00 | 1.23| 4,723,876.37 | 1.37| 5,236,705.11 | 0.82

25| US TREASURY N/ 625 | 2031/ 715 5,020,000.00 | 1.02 | 5,136,364.04 | 1.04 | 5,204,328.13 | 0.82
1.625 5/31

2 EA2550F ANER C 875 4,490,000.00 | 0.99 | 4,459,375.86 | 1.15| 5,150,615.59 | 0.81

27 | AMAZON.COM INC 050 | 2047/ 722 3,850,000.00 | 1.08 | 4,170,901.57 | 1.24| 4,771,017.87 | 0.75
4.05 8/47
OCCIDENTAL

28| AP AL 000 | 2036/10/10 9,049,000.00 | 0.46 | 4,170,731.64 | 0.52| 4,728,102.50 | 0.74
BAUSCH HLTH

20| DS A 500 | 2027/ /31 4,310,000.00 | 1.06 | 4,547,927.37 | 1.08 | 4,665,125.47 | 0.73

30| BUSSIA-OFZ 6.9 900 | 20207 /23|  324,390,000.00 | 0.02| 4,952.856.63 | 0.01| 4,485,697.66 | 0.71
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2021
2021
2021

24,347,671.57 2,665,827 10.00 1,095

2016
62,236,858.97 6,814,314 9.85 1,078

2017
176,302,161.91 19,303,324 10.00 1,095

2018
127,304,201.43 13,938,537 9.26 1,014

2019
131,711,639.07 14,421,107 8.31 910

2020
151,552,969.31 16,593,535 8.64 946

2021
2020 151,050,716.08 16,538,543 9.34 1,023
150,696,221.13 16,499,729 9.22 1,009
10 150,120,446.40 16,436,688 9.05 991
11 156,933,464.57 17,182,645 9.52 1,042
12 162,849,256.09 17,830,365 9.59 1,050
2021 160,180,562.66 17,538,170 9.32 1,020
157,277,807.39 17,220,347 8.98 983
151,552,969.31 16,593,535 8.64 946
162,441,385.73 17,785,707 8.92 977
164,138,176.53 17,971,489 8.99 984
171,088,409.43 18,732,470 9.16 1,003
170,854,520.44 18,706,861 9.15 1,002
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11,474,230.39 1,256,313 10.26 1,123

2016
23,267,819.55 2,547,594 10.74 1,176

2017
102,404,146.50 11,212,230 11.57 1,267

2018
91,562,728.03 10,025,203 11.43 1,251

2019
89,506,079.99 9,800,021 10.93 1,197

2020
98,381,379.25 10,771,777 12.15 1,330

2021
2020 92,632,631.30 10,142,347 12.64 1,384
95,758,857.52 10,484,637 12.54 1,373
10 95,913,740.77 10,501,595 12.38 1,355
11 102,306,607.13 11,201,550 13.09 1,433
12 105,154,429.51 11,513,358 13.27 1,453
2021 103,228,592.76 11,302,499 12.96 1,419
102,029,760.52 11,171,238 12.55 1,374
98,381,379.25 10,771,777 12.15 1,330
100,838,008.72 11,040,754 12.60 1,380
102,489,418.13 11,221,566 12.78 1,399
111,234,528.83 12,179,069 13.09 1,433
110,930,464.16 12,145,777 13.14 1,439
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2,892 1 4
2016 ,892,868,36 9,96

8,496,576,415 9,652

2017
25,232,792,907 9,616

2018
26,439,657,494 8,621

2019
22,738,113,390 7,497

2020
23,149,506,392 7,694

2021 3,149,506,39 69

2020 25,061,997,823 8,387
24,770,155,000 8,269
10 24,396,829,897 8,109
11 25,731,727,765 8,525
12 25,362,112,068 8,578
2021 25,281,216,180 8,324
24,168,748,254 8,008
23,149,506,392 7,694
23,912,790,009 7,931
23,565,399,126 7,993
23,853,994,573 8,139
23,687,503,055 8,120
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2
2,221,208,261 10,22
2016 ,221,208,26 0,225
5,179,983,735 10,533
2017
17,990,479,109 11,154
2018
17,274,111,978 10,711
2019
14,661,961,677 9,990
2020
15,442,612,7 11,
2021 5 6 09 030
2020 16,045,965,408 11,527
15,829,592,347 11,432
10 16,801,173,014 11,279
11 17,677,006,177 11,928
12 17,924,691, 865 12,072
2021 16,313,930, 166 11,786
15,519,578,849 11,407
15,442,612,709 11,030
16,126,702,187 11,442
16,277,334,704 11,605
16,426,712,264 11,890
16,516,112,635 11,935

2015 11 2016 31
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MEEHLEAS LU DS S EHS DR

WS OMRENE  648.091,444 16K/ (202157B%E)

ﬁrm 2015FEA 11 BEAMEE -0 F7AED mzﬁru 1‘?‘" 2015F0R 11 S EEMME 2021 TAED mm;gan
— R (M) — A RS
13F b e T 1210 3 b L e 140
12 J180 12 120
1 100
10 B0
4 at 466
8 Bl 4 a0
7 7t 420
E 'l i i i i '3 6 i i i i i u,
1543 18/ W9 R W9 20/ 15/5 169 174 9 198 29
(R 2SR
RN 170854520440 IDERRREIEE 91580 PRI 110,030464 16K TS RENEN 13,1450
[r] i5EeE1 j~- 21T R ] H15E9E11 | =202 1EET e
Ao A118 EEmEE =EZE] Eo aso 9811 8@ EMEE (=ESE] 20
— O R ) — O R N
13,000 b FRREEN 4 3E0 12,000 | R 4 3B0
12,000 F 4300 12000
11,000 11,000
10,000 10,000
9,000 9,000 |
8,000 8,000 480
7.000 7,000 + - 40
200 . . . . . o 000 ¢ . . . . o
15/9 169 1349 189 1949 2009 15/9 1609 17/9 183 199 209
/) (370
PRESER 236675030550 DStNREENE 8,120/ ARESE 165161126350  IDSRURRREE 11,9358

(#1) &S0 FLREROEIHESEEMSAC O URREREEE. 20217 AxA0e0 TT.
(i 2) ZhFHO A0S s LN DS REsER I EEnEtA.
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2015 11 2016 31 0.25 21
2016 2017 31 0.60 66
2017 2018 31 0.60 66
2018 2019 31 0.60 66
2019 2020 31 0.60 66
2020 2021 31 0.60 66
2020 0.05 5
0.05 5
10 0.05 5
11 0.05 5
12 0.05 5
2021 0.05 5
0.05 5
0.05 5
0.05 5
0.05 5
0.05 5
0.05 5
2021 0.60 66
2021 3.45 378
2
2015 11 2016 31
2016 2017 31
2017 2018 31
2018 2019 31
2019 2020 31

99/266



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
ooooodooodooodooodd

2020 2021 31
2021
2021
2015 11 2016 31 250
2016 2017 31 600
2017 2018 31 600
2018 2019 31 600
2019 2020 31 600
2020 2021 31 600
2020 50
50
10 50
11 50
12 50
2021 50
50
50
50
50
50
50
2021 600
2021 3,450
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2
2015 11 2016 31
2016 2017 31
2017 2018 31
2018 2019 31
2019 2020 31
2020 2021 31
2021
2021
2015 11 2016 31 2.50
2016 2017 31 4.50
2017 2018 31 7.61
2018 2019 31 1.40
2019 2020 31 3.78
2020 2021 31 11.19
2
2015 11 2016 31 2.60
2016 2017 31 4.68
2017 2018 31 7.73
2018 2019 31 1.21
2019 2020 31 4.37
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2020 2021 31 11.16
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2015 11 2016 31 2.14
2016 2017 31 2.89
2017 2018 31 5.84
2018 2019 31 4.11
2019 2020 31 6.08
2020 2021 31 10.63
2
2015 11 2016 31 2.25
2016 2017 31 3.01
2017 2018 31 5.90
2018 2019 31 3.97
2019 2020 31 6.73
2020 2021 31 10.41
100x
10 2

10,000 2
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2015 11 2,531,104 95,629 2,435,475
2016 31 (2,531,104) (95,629) (2,435,475)
2016 5,697,043 1,814,569 6,317,949
2017 31 (5,697,043) (1,814,569) (6,317,949)
2017 13,444,989 2,141,097 17,621,841
2018 31 (13,444,989) (2,141,097) (17,621,841)
2018 2,791,566 6,663,936 13,749,471
2019 31 (2,791,566) (6,663,936) (13,749,471)
2019 5,970,646 3,861,307 15,858,810
2020 31 (5,970,646) (3,861,307) (15,858,810)
2020 4,913,822 3,236,530 17,536,102
2021 31 (4,913,822) (3,236,530) (17,536,102)
2

1,118,645 0 1,118,645
5812 %i (1,118,645) © (1,118,645)
2016 2,127,707 1,098,145 2,148,207
2017 31 (2,127,707) (1,098,145) (2,148,207)
2017 7,139,385 440,135 8,847,457
2018 31 (7,139,385) (440,135) (8,847,457)
2018 1,522,331 2,359,926 8,009,862
2019 31 (1,522,331) (2,359,926) (8,009,862)
2019 2,538,970 2,361,672 8,187,160
2020 31 (2,538,970) (2,361,672) (8,187,160)
2020 2,402,293 2,490,007 8,099,446
2021 31 (2,402,293) (2,490,007) (8,099,446)
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2015 11 306,503 16,173 290,330
2016 31 (306,503) (16,173) (290, 330)
2016 671,157 81,150 880,337
2017 31 (671,157) (81,150) (880,337)
2017 2,053,315 309,632 2,624,020
2018 31 (2,083,315) (309,632) (2,624,020)
2018 800,282 402,896 3,021,406
2019 31 (800,282) (402,896) (3,021,406)
2019 496,264 484,717 3,032,953
2020 31 (496,264) (484,717) (3,032,953)
2020 382,682 406,748 3,008,887
2021 31 (382,682) (406,748) (3,008,887)
2
226,388 9,159 217,229
5812 %i (226,388) (9,159) (217,229)
2016 447,316 172,779 491,766
2017 31 (447,316) (172,779) (491,766)
2017 1,356,568 233,980 1,614,354
2018 31 (1,356,568) (233,980) (1,614,354)
2018 286,740 288,302 1,612,792
2019 31 (286,740) (288,302) (1,612,792)
2019 216,048 361,229 1,467,611
2020 31 (216,048) (361,229) (1,467,611)
2020 241,352 308,906 1,400,057
2021 31 (241,352) (308,906) (1,400,057)
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1 10.00 1
10,000

100.00 1 10 0.001
10,000 1 1 0.001

3.5%

10,000
350
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100 10 0.001
100 10 0.001
10,000 0.001
10,000 0.001

3.85 3.50
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(i) 1 1 1
(ii)0.001 0.001

1
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(iv)
)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
ix
150 14
31 2016 3 31
150 14
25,000,000
30
25,000,000
30

30
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60

90

30
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10

60
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2021 31

2021

31

571,306,561 578,041,028 63,289,712
12,306,641 1,347,454

12,111,018 12,098,634 1,324,679

1,926,880 210,974

1,423,602 155,870

7,169 785

11,493 1,258

605,815,447 66,330,733

2,819,622 308,720

1,395,130 152,753

2,155,436 235,999

65,318 7,152

359,735 39,387

6,795,241 744,011

599,020,206 65,586,722

151,552,970 17,536,102 8.642 946
98,381,379 8,099,446 12.147 1,330
209,670,295 3,008,887 69.684 7,630
139,415,562 1,400,057 99.578 10,903
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2021 31

726 79
4,199,164 459,766
318,119 34,831
136,793 14,977
127,247 13,932
119,235 13,055
63,624 6,966
40,911 4,479
71,283 7,805
5,076,376 555,812
(5,075, 650) (555,733)
17,248,691 1,888,559
(362,163) (39,653)
16,886,528 1,848,906
40,742,430 4,460,889
11,869 1,300
40,754,299 4,462,188
57,640,827 6,311,094

52,565,177 5,755,361

123/266



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 31

(5,075, 650) (555,733)
16,886,528 1,848,906
40,754,299 4,462,188
52,565,177 5,755,361
(9,857,237) (1,079, 269)
(17,064,194) (1,868,359)
(26,921,431) (2,947,627)
5,564,163 609,220
31,207,909 3,416,954
567,812,297 62,169,768

599,020,206 65,586,722
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2021 31
2021 31
2021 31
2020 31 2021 31
547,774,630 129,709,556  (157,434,279) 17,248,691 40,742,430 578,041,028
15
2020 12 31
2021 31 2020 12 31
2021 31
. 2026 9 15
Government of Indonesia® .50-9. .
6.50-9.00 2039 4 15 6.8 40,804,112
Government of Mexico 624,392,000 7.75 2042 11 13 5.0 31,339,130 30,180,173
Government of Mexico 8.00 2047 11 7 1.6 10,637,076 9,709,901
) 2026 10 7
Government of Russia® .00-8. .
6.00-8.15 2039 3 16 9.0 53,810,523
United States Treasury 45,440,000
1.25 2050 5 15 5.6 42,391,542 33,609,643
Note/Bond
United States Treasury 1.13-4.50 2031 2 15 8.1 50.730.099 48.713.759
Note/Bond® T 2051 2 15 : oY e
(€5
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0.01 25,000
0.01
30,000
10,000
0.66
0.05
2021 31
2021 31
4,913,822 45,755,090 2,402,293 30,500,829 382,682 30,045,109
(3,236,530) (29,923,986) (2,490,007) (31,160,850) (406,748) (31,867,843)
1,677,292 15,831,104 (87,714) (660,021) (24,066) (1,822,734)
241,352 26,056,222 7,940,149 132,357,250
(308,906) (33,840,408) (6,442,191) (126,793,087)
(67,554) (7,784,186) 1,497,958 5,564,163
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2021 31
8.305 10.932 69.320 92.906
® (0.073) (0.099) (0.621) (0.858)
1.010 1.314 6.643 7.530
0.937 1.215 6.022 6.672
(0.600) 0.000 (5.658) 0.000
8.642 12.147 69.684 99.578
® 11.28 11.11 8.69 7.18
0.79 0.79 0.80 0.80
(0.79) (0.79) (0.80) (0.80)
a
@
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96.5
96.5

21,625,803
571,306,561 578,041,028
571,306,561 578,041,028
571,306,561 578,041,028
3.5 20,979,178
100.0 599,020,206
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

Mareh 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Aszgels

Investments in affiliated investment company, at fair value (cost $571,306,561) §  STR041,028

Cash equivalents 12,306,641

Foreign currency, at fair value (cost $12,111,018) 12,098 634

Receivable for investments sold 1,926,580

Receivable for units sold 1,423,602

Interest receivable 7,168

Other assets 11,493
Total assets G035 815 447

Liabilities

Redemptions payable 2819622

Payable for investments purchased 1,395,130

Accrued distributor fees 2,155 436

Accrued management fees 65,318

Accrued expenses 359,735
Total liakalities 6,795,241
Net assets attributable 1o redeemable unitholders P 599,020,206

USD Monthly Class

151,552 970/17,536,102 units 5 B.642

USD Sermi-annual Class

£08,38 1,379/8,099 446 units 3 12.147

JPY Monthly Class

3209.670,295/3,008 887 units ¥ 69684

JFY Semi-annual Class

£139,415 562/1,400 057 units % 39 578

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fnancial statements.

-
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Operations

Year Ended March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Investment Income

Interest g 126
Expenszes
Dristributor fees 4,199 164
Agent company fees 38119
Professional 136,793
Management fees 127247
Custody 119,235
Trustee fees 63,624
Administrative, accounting, and transfer agent 40911
Other 71,283
Total expenses 5076376
Met irvesment (10s8) (5,075,6500

Met realized and vnrealized gain (loss) on investments in alTilisted iovestment
companies and foreign currency translation/fransactions

Net realized gain (loss)
Affiliated investment companies 17,248,691
Foreign currency transactions (362,163)
Net realized gain 16,886,528
Met change in unrealized gain (loss)
Affiliated investment companies 40,742 430
Foreign currency translation 11,869
Met change in unrealized gain (loss) 40,754,299
Net realized and unrealized gain (1oss) on imvestments in affiliated investment
comparies and foreign currency translation transac ions 57640827
Netincrease in net assets resulting from operations b 52,565,177

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Mnancial statements.

4
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

From operations

Met imvestment (loss) g (5.075,6500

Net realized gain 16,886,528

MNet change in unrealized gain (loss) 40,754,299
Met increase in net assets resulting from operations 52,565,177

From distributions to unitholders

USD Monthly Class (9857 .237)
JPY Monthly Class (17,064,194)
Total distributions (26,921,431)

From participant transactions

Met increase in net assets resulting from participant transactions (Mote 63 5,564,163
Net increase in net assets 31,207 909

Mel assels

Beginning of vear 56T 812,297

End of year £ 599,020,206

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Mnancial statements.
£
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
MNotes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

1. Organization and Investment Objective

Western Asset Total Retumm Opporminities (the “Fund™) was formed in August 2015 and commenced
operations on September 11, 2015 as a sub-trust of the Western Asset Offshore Funds (“Trost™),
a umit trust established by a trust deed under the Trusts Law (a5 amended) of the Cayman [slands
and registered under the Mutual Funds Law of the Cayman Islands. The Trst is structured as
an umbrella nmit trust, which allows it 10 create multiple sub-trusts, with the aim of segregating
assets and labilities of each sub-trust. As of March 31, 2021, there were 10 sub-trusis of Western
Asset Offshore Funds. Western Asset Management Company Limited (“WAMCL") 1s the Trust's
Manager. Western Asset Management Compamny, LLC (“WAM"), formerdy known as Western
Asszet Management Company, Western Asset Management Company Pre. Lul (“"Western Asset
Singapore™), Western Asset Management Company Ltd. (“Western Asset Tokyo™), Western Asset
Management Company Distribuidora de Timlos e Valores Mobilidrios Limitada (“'Western Asset
Brazil"}, and Western Asset Management Company Pry. Lid. (*Western Asset Melbourne™) are the
sib=irmvestment managers to the Fund {(collectively the “Investment Manager™), BNY Mellon Fund
Management { Cavman) Limated 15 administrator and trustee 1o the Fund The Bank of New York
Mellon, a wholly-cowned subsidiary of The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation, is the custodian
and sub-administrator o the Fund The Bank of New York Mellon (Singapore Branch)is the registrar
and transfer agent to the Fund Mitsubishi UFI Morgan Stanley PB Securities Co. Lud. (Japan) is
Agent Company and Distributor 1o the Fund.

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to provide long-tenm total return by primanly
irvesting all or substantially all of its assets in the Western Asset Macro Opporiunities Alternatives
Fund, Ltd. {the “Fund™). The investment objective of the Fund is to maximize long-term total return,
consistent with prudent investment management.

At March 31, 2021, the Fund had one unaffiliated unitholder who held 100% of the Fund's units
ostanding. The Fund may be materially impacted by the actions of this unitholder.

s Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

In conformty with generally accepted accounting pninciples in the Umited States of Amenca (TS,
GAAF™), the Fund uses the accrual basis of acconnting. Accordingly, income and expenses are
recorded as eamed and incorred, respectively.

The Fund iz an investment company which follows accounting and reporting guidance in the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") A ccounting Standards Codification 946, Financial
Services — Investment Companies.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with US, GAAF, requires management to
make eztimates and azsumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilites, disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

p Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continned)

Use of Estimates (Continued)
of increages and decreases in net assets from operations during the reporting period. Acmal results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents and Foreign Currency

Cash equivalents and foreign currency consist of cash and foreign currency on deposit with financial
mstintions. Cash equivalents are carried at cost, plus accrued mterest, which approximates fair
value.

The Fund considers all highly liquid irvestments with a mamnty of three months or less when
purchased 1o be cash equivalents. Cash held in banks periodically exceeds the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation’s ("FDIC") insurance coverage of $250,000, and as a result, there is a
concentration of credit fsk related o amounts in excess of the FDIC insurnee coverage,

Funetional and Presentation Currency

Items inclpded in the Fund's financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic ervironment in which it operates. Issnances, redemptions, and valuations of the units are
effected and denominated in the US. Dollars (“USD™),

Foreign Currency TranslationTransactions

Investment securities and other assets and labilities dencminated in foreign currencies are translated
into USD amounts based upon prevailing exchange rates on the date of valuation. Purchases and
gales of investment securities, income and expense items, and issuance and redemptions of units
denomanated in foreign currencies are translated inte USD amounts based upon prevailing exchangs
mtes on the respectve dates of such transactions. Income and expenses are translated o USD
amounts based upon an average of prevailing exchange rates for the year ended March 31, 2021,

The Fund does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from fluciuations in
foreign exchange rates on investments from the fluctiations arising from changes in the fair value
of investments in affiliated investment companies held. Such flucmations are included within the
net realized and unrealized gain or loss on investments in affiliated investment companies on the
Statement of Operations.

Met realized foreign exchange gains or losses anse from sales of foreign currencies, inchuding
exchange gains and logses on the setement of forward foreign currency coNtracts, CUTENcy gains or
losses realized between the trade and settlement dates on investment transactions, and the difference
between the amount of interest recorded on the Fund’s books and the USD equivalent of the amounts
actally received or paid. Net unrealized foreign exchange gaing or logses anse from changes in the
fair values of assets and liabilities, other than imvestments in affliated imvestment companies, on the
date of valuation, resulting from changes in exchange rates.

Certain foreign security and currency transactions may involve considerations and risks not typically
associated with those of USDy denominated transactions as a result of, ameng other factors, the
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

p Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continned)

Foreign Currency Translation Transactions (Continued)
possibility of lower levels of govermmental supervision and regulation of foreign secunties markets
and the possibality of political or economic instabality

Inenme Taxes

According to the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital
gaing or other taxes payable by the Fund. As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made
in the financial statements.

The Fund intends to conduct its affairs go that it will not be deemed 1o be engaged in trade or business
in the US. and, therefore, none of its income will be treated as “effectively connected” with a US.
trade or business carried on by the Fund. Effectively connected income is subject to US, federal
income tax at the graduated rates applicable 1o US. domestic corporations. Certain categories of
incomme that are not “effectively connected” but are denved from LS. sources, including dividends
and inferest income, are subject to a LS. tax of thirty percent. However, under the portfolio interest
exemption, the thirty percent tax does not apply to portfolio interest earned. For the year ended
March 31, 2021, interest earned by the Fund gualifies under the portfolio interest exemption

The Fund iz subject 1o the authoritative guidance with regpect 1o accounting for and disclosure of
uncertainty in tax positions, which requires the Fund 1o determine whether a tax pogition is more
likely than not to be sustained upon examination Management has analyzed the Fund's tax positions
for all open tax years and has concluded that as of March 31, 2021, there are no uncertamn tax
posations that would reguire financial ftatement recognition or disclosure. The Fund's policy is o
recognize interest and penalties, iF any, related to uncertain tax positions as a component of income
tax expense. For the year ended March 31, 2021, the Fund did not recognize any intérest or penalties
for uncertain tax positions. There are currently no examinations being conducted of the Fund by the
Internal Revenue Service or any other taxing anthority

Issuanees and Redemptions of Units of Participation

Fund units are izsued in multiple classes (each a “Class” and, collectively, the “Classes™). The
Fund currently offers the USD Monthly Class, USD Semi-anmual Clags (each 2 “USD Class™ and
collectively, the “USD Classes™) and the JPY Monthly Class and JPY Semi-annual Class {each a
“IPY Class” and collectively, the “JPY Classes”). The USD Classes are denominated in USD and
the JFY Classes in Japanese Yen (“JPY™) (each a “Denomanation Currency™) in which issnances,
redemptions, and valuation of units are effected and in which units are denominated

The net asset value of each Class is determined in the Denonunation Currency on the relevant
“Dealing” Day. A Dealing Day is every business day on which federal, state or local banks are open
for business in New York, London, Japan and the Cayman [slands and the New York Stock Exchange
and London Exchange 15 open for trading. Issuances and redemptions of Fund units are made on
such days, based upon the closing net asset value, The Distributor may charge up to 3.5% of the total
amount of each subscription, including any applicable consumption or other taxes.
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

p Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continned)

Issuaneces and Redemptions of Units of Participation (Contimued)

The Trustee, in consultation with the Invesmment Manager, may temporarily suspend the determination
of the net asset value of the Fund, and the issuance and redemption of the Fund's units, and may
postpone the date of payment of redemption proceeds if, among other reasons, during any period
when it is not reasonably practicabde for the Investment Manager (o fairly determine the value of the
Fund’s net assets. There were no such occurrences duning year ended March 31, 2021

Allocation of Income, Expenses, (Gains, and Losses

Income, expenses, and realized and unrealized gains and losses are allocated on a daily basis o
each Class of units based upon the relative portion of net assets of each Class. The Fund will apply
adjustments 1o the valuation of it Clasges in order 1o specifically credit or charge 1o the relevam
Clazs of units any applicable gaing, losses and expenses generated by hedgmng transactions with
respect to such Classes (eg., all costs associated with hedging transactions relating to the JPY of
units are borme by the JPY of unitz). All Classes of units will bear ratably any gains, losses and
expenses generated by hedgng non-USD denominated investmenis 1o the funciional currency.

Redemptions Pavable

Redemptions are recogmzed as labihties when the amount requested in the redemption notice
becomes fixed and determinable. This will generally occur either at the time of the receipt of the
notice or on the last day of a fiscal period, depending on the nature of the redemption request. As
a result, redemptions paid afler the end of the year, but based upon year end net asset values, are
reflected as redempions payable on the Statement of Assets and Lisbilities at March 31, 2021.
Redemption notices received for which the dollar and umit amounts are not fixed remain in capital
until the net asset value used to determine the redemption and unit amounts are determined

Distributions to Unitholders

Distributions from net investment income, net realized orunrealized gains and'or capital are declared
by the Fund on the 15th day of each month for the USD Monthly Class and JPY Monthly Class and
on the 15th day of March and September for the USD Semi-annual class and JPY Semi-annual
class and are declared on the preceding day. Distributions are paid in cash or in-kind as may be
determined by the Investment Manager, unless the unitholders elect 1o reinvest in additional units.
Cash distributions with respect 1o a Class are paid in each Class Denomination Currency,

Recent Aceounting Pronouncement

The Fund has made a change in accounting principle and adopted the provisions of Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) Accounting Standards Update 201 7-08 (“ASU 2017-
0873, Premium Amortization on Purchased Callable Diebt Securities. ASU 2017-08 shortens the
amortisation period For certann callable debt secunities held at a premium; specifically, requiring the
premuwm to be amortized to the eardiest call date. Pnor to ASU 2017-08, premuums on callable debt
securities were generally amortized to maturity date. ASU 201 7-08 is intended to more closely align
the amortization period with the expectations incorporated into the market pricing on the underlying
security. ASU 2017-08 does not require an accounting change for securities held at a discount; the

141/266



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

p Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continned)

Recent Accounting Propouncement {Continued)
discount continues to be amortzed 1o maturity date. Upon evaluation, the Fund has concludad that
the change in accounting principle does not matenally impact the financial statement amounts

3 Valuation

The Fund has adopted procedures for determining the value of its investments each “Dealing Day™.
Under these procedures, the Fund has delegated its authority to a pricing committee governed by the
Investment Manager to determing the value of the Funds imvestments ¢ach Dealing Day. The notes
below describe in greater detail the methodologies used to value the Fund's mvestments

Investments inaMlisted imvestment companies are valued milizng the netagset values provided by the
underlying fimd as a practical expedient. The Fund applies the practical expedient to its investments
in affiliated investment companies on an investment-by-investment basis, and consistently with the
Fund's entire position in @ particular investment, unless it is probable that the Fund will sell a portion
of an investment at an amount different from the net asset value of the investment.

The Fund nges both the income and market approaches 1o establish the fair value of 115 imvestments,
Use of particular techniques and inpuls may vary over ime based on availability and relevance as
market and economic conditions eviolve.

Over-the-counter financial dedvative instruments, such as forward foreign currency comtracts,
options contracts, swaplion contracts, or swap agreements, derive their value from underying asset
prices, indices, reference rates, and other inputs or a combination of these factors. These contracts
are normally valued on the bazis of pricing service providers or broker dealer quatations. Depending
o the product and the terms of the transaction, the value of financial derivative instruments can be
estimated by a pricing service provider using a series of technigues, including simulation pricing
models. The pricing models use inputs that are observed from actively quoted markets such as issuer
detals, indices, spreads, interest rates, yield curves, and exchange rates.

Investments in a collective investment velicle, including invesuments in investment companies, are
valued using the net asset value of such investment vehicles, as a practical expedient

The various inputs that are used in determarning the fair value of the Fund's assets and liabilites are
summanzed into the broad levels listed below:

#  Level | —guoted prices in active markets for identical investments

& Level 2 —other significant observable mputs (inclueding quoted prices for similar investments,
interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit risk, ete.)
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

3 Valuation (Continmed)

&  [evel 3 —significant unobservable impats, including the [nvestment Managers own
assumplions  in determining the fair value of ivestments. Level 3 fair value
techniques include (i) the use of proprietary models that require the use of judgment
and the application of varions assumptions including, but not limited to, prepayment
assumptions and default rate agsumptions, and (ii) the solicitation of valuwations
from third parties (typically, broker-dealers). Third-party valuation providers often
utilize proprietary models that are subjective and also require the use of judgment
and the application of various assumptions including, but not limited to, prepayment
agsumptions and defanlt rate assumptions

The valuation levels are not necessarily an indication of the risk or liquidity associated with investing
i thoge securities.

Az of March 31, 2021, 100% of the portfolio was valued using NAV as a practical expedient

4. DIivestments in Affiliated Investment Companies

The following table summanzes the Fund's investments in affiliated investment companies (the
“Investee Funds™) as of March 31, 2021. The Fund did not directly pay any management fee or
performance fee to the Investee Funds for the year ended March 31, 2021 The Fund did not receive
any distributions from the affiliated investment companies during the year ended March 31, 2021,

Change in
Fair Value Unrealized  Fair Value
At March Redemption  Realized Gain At March
Tovestment 51,2020 Purchases Proceeds Gain {Loos) 31,2021
Wagtarn Asset Masmo
Crppartuinitiee Alamativas
Pund Ltd § SanTMsl0 3 13 TRSSE FOSTH3AEM) 3 1T Edsn 3 a0,74i430 § 5T O04100%

Western Asset Macro Opportunities Alternatives Fund, Ltd — The investment objective is 1o
maximize long-term total return, consistent with prudent investment management. Under normal
market condifions, the fimd expects to invest primarily in any combination of the following:
securities issued or guaranteed by U5 federal, state, local, and city governments, and their
agencies, instrumentalities, mumaeapalities, and subdivisions, secunties issued by US. and non-115.
corporations (including Emerging Market Issuers). Redemption is permitted daily. A shareholder
may redeem all or a portion of its shares upon 15 business days’ prior written notice to the Fund.
There are no unfunded commitments due by the Fumd as of December 31, 2020, The Investee Fundis
domiciled in the Cayman Islands. The imvestment in the Investee Fund is valued using the unaudited
net asset value of the Investee Fund as of March 31, 2021 The latest andited financial statements
of the Investee Fund for the year emded December 31, 2020 are available upon request from the
Investment Manager.
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

4, Ivestments in Affiliated Investment Companies (Continued)

At March31, 2021, the Fund's ownership in the following issuers, including directly owned securities
and in which other irvestment companies are invested, represented more than 3% of the Fund’s net

agsels,
Percent
of
Interest Net Proportionate
Principal Rate Matarity Aszets Propor tionate Fair
Aot (%) Date (%) Cost Value
Government of 091 572 26
Indonesia v 650500 0441 52039 6.8 & A08M.112
Ciovernment of
Mexico S624 392 000 1.75 11/13/2042 5.0 31,33%.130 J0180,173
Government of
Mexico 8.0 1107 2047 1.6 10,637,076 o, 700,901
Giovernment of 1WOT2026-
Rusgia Y E00-8.15 03162030 9.0 53810523
United States
Treasury/Bonod 45 440,000 1.25 051 52050 5.4 41,391,542 33,600 643
United States 021572031«
Treasury/Bond" 1.13-4.50 02/15/2051 81 0,730,090 48,713,750

@ These amounis represents the aggregate value of various securities bess than 5% of the Fund s net assets.

5 Charges and Fees

Manager Fee
The Mamager's fee 1% acerued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an anmual rate of 0.01% of the
average daily net assets of the Fund.

Irvestment Manager Fee
The Ivesment Manager's fee is accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of
0.01% of the average daily net asseis of the Fund

Trustee Fee
The Trustes fee 15 accrued daiky and payable quartery in arrears at an anneal rate of 0.01% of the
average daily net assets of the Fund or & minimum of £25 000 per year

Administrator Fee

The Administrator fee iz acerned daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an anmal rate of 0.01% of
the average daily net asgets of the Fund or a minimum fee of 330,000 per year and an additional fee
of 510,000 anmually for each additional class in excess of the first 3 classes,
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
March 31, 2021
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

5, Charges and Fees (Continued)
Distributor Fee

The Distributor fee is accrued daily and payable quartedly in arrears at an annual rate of 0.66% of

the average dmly net assets of the Fund.

Agent Com pany Fee

The Agent Company fee is accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of (.05%

of the average datly net assets of the Fund.

b, Units of Participation

The Following represents the Fund's unit activity for the year ended March 31, 2021,

Year Ended Manch 31, 2021
VS0 M enahly Clada LISI Kok annual Tl JPY M o thby s
Units Admising nits A il mnics Amnoang
Uity Essped d5913,822 § 45,755,080 2402293 § 30,300,519 JEr6EZ § 0,005,103
Unita radesmesd (3226 5200 (29,923 9EE) {2, 400,007y {31,160 RS0 (404, 48) {31 857,543}

Par trosmighe (decreiae’

LETT20E [ECEINIL] Ena s [B80031) (24,0448 § (82 T340

JPY Semb amomal Cliss

Tlnits Agnount
Elnita lamped FETREE R 26,056,222
Ll redesmed (208, 506) (33,840 40}

7,940,149 5

1 nits A izl
132 357,350

(A4a2191Y (126,793 087)

Mt mosease (decoeasa)

— s ooeaise _ ldwmesf s
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

7. Finaneial Highlights
Year Ended March 31, 2021

UsD Us JPY JPY

Monthly Bemd-annual Monthly Semi-annnaal
Selected Per Unit Data Class Class Class Class
et asset value, beginning of year b3 §305 3 10932 § 69320 % 925906
et imvestment (Joss)'™ {0.073) {095} (621) ((LB5E)
et realized and unrealized gain (loss) I [ 1.314 G643 7.550
Total income from investment aperations 0,937 1.215 6022 6672
Distributions to unitholders (0,600} (040 (5.658) 0,000
Net asset value, end of year g 8642 § 12147 % HP.684 5 09 578
Total retum %% - 1L 1Ll 869 718
Ratios to Average Net Assets
Expenses % 0.7% 0.7% 080 0,50
et imvestment Incoms %% 0. 79 {0.79) (D8] {0,800

A Net investment income per unit las been caloulaed based upon average units outstanding for the year

B Total return caleulation is based on the value of a single unit of participation outstanding ihroughout the yez.
It represents the percentage change in the net asset value per unit betaween the beginning and end of the year,
exchuding distributions to unitholders,

The above mtios are calculated for the participating units a5 a whole, An individual umt holder's
total return and ratios may vary from these ratios based on the timing of capital unit transactions.

B Fund Investment Risks
Hedging Transactions Rigk

Hedging strategies in general are nsually intended 1o limit or reduce investment risk, but can also be
expected tolimit of reduce the potential for profit. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent that
assets of the Fund attributable to a particular Class of units are insnfficient to satisfy the habilities
associated with a hedging transaction with respect 1o such Class of units, such amount of the
liabilities that exceed such assets may be borne by the other Classes of unats of the Fund

Liquidity Risk

The Fumnd may invest in assets amnd derivatives that may not be readily available to sell or dispose
of, including secunfies whese disposition is restricted by secunities laws. The effect of hqudity nsk
iz particularly pronounced when Llow trading volume, lack of a market maker, large position size,
or legal restrictions (including daily price fluctation limits or “circuit breakers” or an affiliation
with the issuer of a security) limit or prevent the Fund's ability to initiate a transaction, sell assets,
or unwind derivative positions at desirable prices. The Fund is also exposed 1o liquidity risk when it
has an obligation to purchase particular securities { for example, as a result of entening info reverse
repurchase agreements, wrting a put, or closing ont 4 short pogition),
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

. Fund Investment Risks (Continued)
Concentration of Risk

To the extent the Fund concentrates its investments in one or more countries, the value of the Fund's
assets will be especially affected by economic, pohitical and other factors affecting such country or
countries, and may fluctieate more widely than the value of a fund that invests in a greater number
of countries

9. Cantingencies and Commitments

In the normal conrse of buziness, the Fund ¢nters into contracts that contain a varety of representations
and warranties, which provide general indemmifications. The Fund's maximum exposure under these
arrangements is unknown, as this would imvolve fiture claims that may be made against the Fund
that have not yet occurred. Based on experience, management is of the view that the nsk of loss
in connection with these potential indemnification obligations is remote; however, there can be no
assurance that material liabilides related 10 such obligations will not arise in the finure that could
adversely impact the business of the Fund.

10, Subsequent Events

As of May 27, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued, no subsequent
events or transactions had occurred that would have materially impacted the financial statements as
presented
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

NUMBER OF FAIR
SHARES COsT VALUE

INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATED INVESTMENT COMPANY - 84.5%
UNITED STATES - %6.5%

21,625,503 Western Assst Macro Opportusities Albermatives Fund L, §  STLI06S61 §  STED6102E
TOTAL UNITED STATES STUGORSEL  STHADLA28
TOTAL INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATED INVESTMENT COMPANY §  STLIOASML 5 STHM41029
OTHER ASSETS IN EXCESS OF LIABILITIES - 3.5% . 20,879,178
NET ASSETS - 100,0% §  S00,i20206

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Mnancial statements.

3
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2020 31

2020 31

581,782,503 547,774,630 59,975,844
12,274,626 1,343,949

9,137,388 9,113,136 997,797

1,059,386 115,992

494,235 54,114

7,884 863

39,332 4,306

570,763,229 62,492,866

1,038,198 113,672

593,272 64,957

1,049,338 114,892

31,802 3,482

238,322 26,094

2,950,932 323,098

567,812,297 62,169,768

131,711,639 15,858,810 8.305 909
89,506,080 8,187,160 10.932 1,197
210,245,313 3,032,953 69.320 7,590
136,349, 265 1,467,611 92.906 10,172
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2020 31

50,685 5,550
4,191,555 458,933
317,542 34,768
127,017 13,907
71,475 7,826
64,240 7.034
61,471 6,730
29,159 3,193
43,127 4,722
4,905,586 537,113
(4,854,901) (531,563)
4,803,848 525,973
2,641,208 289,186
7,445,056 815,159
(29,735,067) (3,255,692)
(13,024) (1,426)
(29,748,091) (3,257,118)
(22,303,035) (2,441,959)

(27,157,936) (2,973,522)
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2020
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(4,854,901)
7,445,056
(29,748,091)

(531,563)
815,159
(3,257,118)

(27,157,936)

(2,973,522)

(8,678,637)
(16,978,709)

(950,224)
(1,858,999)

(25,657,346)

(2.809,223)

10,408,667

1,139,645

(42,406, 615)

610,218,912

(4,643,100)

66,812,869

567,812,297

62,169,768
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2020 31 100

2020 31
2020 31
2020 31

2019 31 2020 31

593,113,713 146,674,816 (169,522,248) 7,243,416 (29,735,067) 547,774,630
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15
2019 12 31
2020 31 2019 12 31
2020 31
Government of Indonesia® 5.6 31,788,478
Government of Mexico® 6.2 35,124,551
Government of Russia® 8.8 49,811,667
United States Treasury Note/Bond(® 15.5 88,148,360
36.1 204,873,056
(¢
0.01
0.01
0.01 25,000
0.01
30,000
10,000

0.66
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0.05
2020 31
2020 31
5,970,646 56,754,978 2,538,970 31,006,619 496,264 39,556,048
(3,861,307) (36,147,827) (2,361,672) (27,505,232) (484,717) (38,682,236)
2,109,339 20,607,151 177,298 3,501,387 11,547 873,812
216,048 22,260,549 9,221,928 149,668,194
(361,229) (36,924,231) (7,068,925) (139,259,526)
(145,181) (14,663,682) 2,153,003 10,408,668
2020 31
9.258 11.431 77.875 96.769
6 (0.070) (0.089) (0.615) (0.792)
(0.283) (0.410) (2.423) (3.071)
(0.353) (0.499) (3.038) (3.863)
(0.600) 0.000 (5.517) 0.000
8.305 10.932 69.320 92.906
@ (3.81) (4.37) (3.90) (3.99)
0.77 0.77 0.77 0.77
(0.74) (0.74) (0.78) (0.78)

a
Q@
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

March 31, 2020

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Assels
Investments i affiliated imvestment company. at value (cost 5581,7582,593) $547.774,630
Cash equivalents 12274626
Foreign currency, af value (cost 39,137 3588) 113,136
Recervable for units msued 141559, 386
Recervable for mvestiments sold 494,235
Interest receivable T.H84
Oither assets 30,332
Total asseis 370,763,229
Liabilities
Payable for investments purchased 1038, 198
Redemptions payable 593,272
Acerued distnbutor fees 1049 338
Acerued management fees 31,802
Acerued expenses 238,322
Total habilities 2050932
MNet assets attributable to redeemable unitholders S567.812.297
g ________]
USD Monthly Class
ST31.711,639/15, 858,810 units b 5.305
LISD Semi-annual Class

589.506,080/8, 187, 160 unts 5 10932

JPY Monthly Class
S210.245.31 33,032,953 units 5 69320

JPY Semi-annual Class
5136349 2651, 467,61 1 units by G2 Mo

The accompanying notes are an micgral pant of these Mnancial statements,

-
a1
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended March 31, 2020

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Imvestment Income

Interest 3 50685
Expenses
Distributor fees 4,191,555
Agent company fees 317,542
Management fees 12717
Trustee foes 711,475
Custoddy 0, 2400
Professional 61,47
Administrative, accounting, amnd tranafer agent 20,159
Ohher 43,127
Total expenses 40115, 580
Net investment (loss) {4554, )

Met realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investments in affiliated investment
companies and foreign currency translation/transactions

Mt realized gain (loss)
AdTihiated imvestment companies 4 803 545
Foreign currency transactions 2,641,208
Net realized gain 7445056
Met change in unrealized gain {loss)
Affiliated investment companies (29,735,067
Foreign currency translation (13.024)
Net change in unrealized gain {loss) {29,745/ )
Met realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investments in affiliated investment
companies and forsign currency translation fransactions (22,303,035)
Met (decrease) in net assefs resulting from operations S(2T.057.930)
_—

The accompanying notes are an micgral part of these Mmancial statements,

4
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended March 31, 2020

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

From operations

Net invesiment (loss) 5 (48549400
Met realized gain TA45 056
Met change in unrealized gain {loss) (29,748,091

Met {decrease) in net assets resulting from operations (27.157.936)

From distributions to unit holders

LS Monthly Class (3,678,637
IPY Monthly Class (16,978,709
Total distributions (25657 346)

From participant transactions

Met increase monel assels resulting from participant fransactions (Nofe 6) 110,408, 667
Net (decrease) n net assels (42 406,61 5)

Net assets

Beginning of year al0.218,912

End of year $567.812,297

The accompanying notes are an micgral part of these Mnancial statements.

5
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

March 21, 2020

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

1. Organization and Iivestment Objective

Western Asset Total Return Opportumities (the “Fund™)y was formed in August 2015 and commencead
operations on September 11, 2015 as a sub-trust of the Western Asset Offshore Funds (“Trust™), a
unit trust established by a trust deed wnder the Trusts Law (as amended) of the Cayman Islands and
registered under the Muiual Funds Law (2013 revizion) of the Cayman Lslands. The Trusi is struciured
as an umibrella unit trast, which allows it to create multiple sub-trusts, with the aim of sepregating
assels and liabilities of each sub-rust. As of March 31, 2020, there were 10 sub-trusts of Westem
Acmet Uilshore Funds, Western Asset Management Company Limited (™WAMOCL”) i the Trust's Mamager.
Western Asset Management Company, LLC (WAM™), formerly known as Western Asset Management
Company, Western Assel Management Company Pre. Lid. (“"Western Assel Singapore™ ), Western Assel
Management Company Lt (“Western Asset Tokyo” ), Westarn Asset Management Company Distnbuidora
de Titulos ¢ Valores Mobilirios Limatada (“Western Asset Brazl™), and Western Asset Management
Company Piy. Lid (“Western Asset Melbourne™ ) are the sub-mvestment managers to the Fund (collectively
the “Investment Manager™ ). BNY Mellon Fund Management {Cayman) Limited s administrator and
trustee to the Fund. The Bank of New York Mellon, a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Bank of New
York Mellon Corporation, 15 the custodian and sub-administrator to the Fund. The Bank of Mew York
Mellon { Singapore Branch) s registrar and transfer agent to the Fund. Mitsubishe UFT Morgan Stanley
PB Securities Co. Lid. (Japan) is Agent Company and Dhistributor to the Fund.

The investment objective ofthe Fund i3 to seek to provide long-term total return by primarily investing
all or substantially all of its assets in the Western Asset Macro Opportunities Alternatives Fund, Lid.,
{the “Fund™). The investment objective of the Fund is to maximize long-term total returm, consistent
with prudent investment management,

At March 31, 20240, the Fund had one unaffiliated unitholder who held 100% ofthe Fund s units owtstanding.
The Fund may be matenially impacted by the actions of this unitholder,

Z. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Acecounting

In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (<115,
GAADPT), the Fund uses the accrual basis of accounting, Accordingly, income and expenses are recorded
as earned and incurred, respectively.

The Fund 15 an mvestment company which follows accounting and reporting gutdance m the Financial
Accounting Standards Board ("FASE™) Accounting Standards Codification 946, Financial Services
= Investment Companies.,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of Tinancial statements, in conformity with U8, GAAF requires management to make
estimates and assumpions that affect the reported amounts oFassets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent
assels and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of inereases and
decreases in nel asgets from operations dunng the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 21, 2020

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Z. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash Equivalents and Foreign Currency
Cash equivalents and foreign currency consists of cash and foreign currency on deposit with fimancial
mstitutions, Cash equivalents are carried at cost, plus acerued interest, which approximates Fair value,

The Fund considers all highly liquid investments with 2 maturity of three months or less when purchasad
to be cash equivalents, Cash held m banks penodically exceeds the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation s
(FDIC™) msurance coverage of $ 250, (WK}, and as a result, there is a concentration of credit nisk related
to amounts in excess of FDIC insurance coverage.

Functional and Presentation Currency

Items includad in the Fund’s financial statements are measurad wsing the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates. Izssuances, redemptions, and valuations of the units are
effected and denomanated in LS. Deollars (“LISLY™),

Foreign Currency Translation/Transactions

Investment securitics and other assets and habilines denommnated in foreign currencies are ranslated
nto USDamounts based upon prevanhing exchange rates on the date ol valuation. Purchases and sales
of imvestment securitics, income and expense tems, (and issuance and redemptions o funis) denominated
in forcign currencies are translated mto USE amounts based upon prevailing exchange mtes on the
respective dates of such transactions, Income and expenses are translated into USD amounts based
upon an average of prevailing exchange rates for the year ended March 31, 2020,

The Fund does not solate that portion of the results ol operations resulting from Quctuations in foreign
exchange rafes onmvestments from the Muetuatons arsmg from changes m the fair value ol myvestments
m affiliated imvestment companies held. Such Muctuations are meluded within the net realized and
unrealized gain or loss on imvestments moaffiliated mvestment companies on the Statement of

Olperations,

Met realized foreign exchange gains or losses anise from sales of foreign currencies, including exchange
gains and losses on the settlement of forward foreign currency confracts, currency gains or losses
realized between the trade and setilement dates on imvestment transactions, and the difference between
the amount of interest recorded on the Fund's books and the USD equivalent of the amounts actually
received or paid. Wet unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses arise from changes in the fair values
of assetz and liabilities, other than nvestments in affiliated investment companies, on the date of valuation,
resuliing from changes m exchange rates.
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2020

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Z. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Foreign Currency Translation/Transactions (Continued)

Certain foreign security amd currency transactions may mvolve considerations and risks not typically
associated with those of USD denominated transactions as a result of, among other factors, the possibility
of lower levels of governmental supervision and regulation of Toreign securities markets and the possibility
of political or economie instabiliry.

Income Taxes

According to the current laws of the Cayman Islands, thers is no income, estate, corporation, capital
gains or other taxes payable by the Fund. As o result, no provision for income taxes has been made
in the financial statements,

The Fund intends to condwct its affairs so that it will not be deemead to be engaged in trade or business
i the LS. and, therefore, none of i mceome will be treated as “effectively connected™ with a LS,
trade or business carried on by the Fund. Effectively connected income is subject to LS. faderal income
tax al the graduated rates applicable to TS, domestic corporations. Certam categories of meome that
are nod “effectively connected™ but are derved from LUS. sources, including dividends and interest
ncome, are subject toa ULS. tax of thirty percent. However, under the portfolio nterest exemption,
the tharty percent tax does not apply to portfolio mterest earned. For the vear ended March 31, 2020,
mterest carned by the Fund gualifies under the port folio interest exemplion.

The Fund 1s subjeet to the awthoritative gudance with respeet to accounimg for and disclosure of
uncertamty in tax positions, which reguires the Fund to determine whether a tax position iz more likely
than not 1o be sustained upon examination. Management has analyzed the Fund's tax positions for
all open tax years and has concluded that as of March 21, 2020, there are no uncertain 1ax positions
that would require financial statement recognition or disclosure, The Fund's policy 13 to recognize
interest and penalties, iCany. related to uncertain tax positions a2 a component of Icome tax expense,
For the year ended March 31, 2020, the Fund did not recopnize any interest or penalties for uncertain
1A% posilions,

Issuances and Redemptions of Units of Participation

Fund units are 1ssued in multiple classes (each a “Class™ and, collectively, the *Classes™), The Fund
currently offers the UUSEY Monthly Class, LS Semi-annual Class (each a “USE Class™ and callectively,
the “USD Classes™) and the JPY Monthly Class and JPY Semi-annual Class (each a “JPY Class™ and
collectively, the “JPY Classes™). The USD Classes are denomnated in DS and the JPY Classes in
Japanese Yen (“JPY™) (cach a “Denommation Currency™) in which issuances, redemptions, and valuation
of wts are elfected and in which units are denomimated.

The net asset value of each Class 15 determined in the Denomination Currency on the relevant Dealing
Day. A Dealing Day s every business day on which federal, state or local banks are apen for business
in New York, the Cayman [slands and the New York Steck Exchange is open for trading. Issuances
and redemptions of Fund units are made on such days, based upon the closing net asset valee. The
[histributor may charge up to 3.5% of the total amount of ¢ach subscription, including any applicable
consumplion or other taxes.
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 21, 2020

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Z. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Issnances and Redemptions of Units of Participation (Continned)

The Trustee, in con=uliation with the Investment Manager, may temporarily suspend the determination
of the net assel value of the Fund, and the izsvance and redemption ofthe Fund *s units, and may postpone
the date of payment of redempiion proceeds if, among other reasons, during any period when if i noi
reasonably practicable for the Investment Manager to fairly determine the value of the Fund’s net
assets, There were no such ocourrences during the year ended March 31, 20240,

Alloeation of Income, Expenses, Gains, and Losses

Income, expenzes, and realized and unrealized gains and loszes are allocated on a daly basis to each
Class of units based upon the relative portion of net assets of each Class, The Fund will apply adjustments
to the valuation of its Classes in order fo specifically credit or charge to the relevant Class of units
amy applicable gams, losses and expenses penerated by hedgmg transsctions with respect tosuch Classes {e.p.,
all costs associated with hadging transactions relating to the JPY Class of umits are borne by the JPY
Class ofunitz). All Classes ofunits will bear mtably any gains, losses and expenses generated by hedging
non-1IS0 denommated wvestments 1o the functional currency.

Redemptions Pavable

Redemptions are recognized as habalifies when the amount requesied m the redemption nofice becomes
fixed. This will generally ocour cither at the time of the receipt of the notice or on the last day of a
fiscal period, depending on the nature of the redemption request. As a resull, redemptions paid after
the end of the year, but based upon year end net asset values, are reflected as redemptions payable on
the Statement of Asseis and Liabihiies af March 31, 2020, Redemption notices recenved for which the
dollar and unit amounts are not Mixed remain in capital until the net asset value vsed to determine the
redemption and unit amounts are determined,

Distributions to Unitholders

Dhiztributions from net ivestmeant income, net realized or unrealized gains andor capital are declrad
by the Fund on the 15™ day of each month for the USD Monthly Class and JPY Monthly Class and
on the 15™ day of March and September for the USD Semi-annual elass and JPY Semi-annual class
and are declared on the preceding day. Distribitions are paid in cash or in-kind, as may be determined
by the Investment Manager, unless the unitholders elect to reinvest in additional units. Cash distributions
with respsect toa Class are paid in each Class Denommation Currency.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

I March 2007, the FASE issued Accounting Standards Update{ASU y No, 200 7-08, Premium Amortisation
on Purchased Callable Diebt Securities, winch shortens the amortization period for certaun callable
debt securitios held af a premium o the carliest call date. The new and revised disclosures are effective
for interim and annual repoerting pertods begimning after December 15, 2019 The Fund has not carly
adopted the standard, and management 15 currently evaluating the implications of ASL No, 2000 7-018
and 15 impact on the Fund's flinancial statements.
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{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2020

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

3. Yaluation

The Fund has adopted procedures for determining the value of i1z investmentzs each Dealing Day. Under
these procedures, the Fund has delegated its apthority to a pricing committee governed by the Investment
Manager to determing the value ofthe Fund s investments each Dealing Day. The notes below describe
in greater detail the methodologies used to value the Fund’s invesimenis,

Investments in aftiliated mvestment companies are valwed wilizmg the net asset valves provided by
the underlying fund as a practical expedient. The Fund applies the practical expedient to its investments
in affiliated investment companies on an investment-by-imvestment basis, and consistently with the
Fund s entire position in a particular investment, unless it i3 probable that the Fund will sell a portion
of an investment at an amount different from the net azset value of the investment.

The Fund uses both the imcome and market approaches to establish the fair value of s investments.
Uze of parncular techniques and mputs may vary over time based on avalability and relevance as
market and economic conditions evalve.

Cheer-the-counter Mmancial dervative instruments, such as forward foreign currency contracts, oplions
contracts, swaplion conlracts, or swap agreements, derve ther value from underlying assel prices,
mndices. reference mtes, and other mputs ora combination of these Mfctors. These contracts are normally
valued on the basis of pricing service providers or broker dealer quotations. Depending on the product
and the terms of the tansaction, the value of Nnancial dernative mstruments can be estimated by a
pricing service provider usmg a senes oftechmgues, meludmg simulation pricing models, The pricing
mionlels use mputs that are observed from actively quoted market s sich as issuer details, indices, spreads,
interest rates, yield curves, and exchange rates.

Investments e a collective imvestment vehicle, meluding mvestments i mvestment companies, are
valued using the net asset value of such investment vehicles, as a practical expedient.

The varous inputs that are used i determining the fair valoe of the Fund’s assets and liabilities are
summarized into the broad levels listed below:

® Level 1 — quoted prices m active markets for identical investments

® Level 2 — other sigmificant observable mpuis (meluding quoted prices for similar vestments,
interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit risk. ete.)

& Level 3 — sigmifcant unobservable inputs, meloding the Investment Manager's own assumplions
in determining the fair value of investments. Level 3 fair value techniques include (1)
the use of proprietary models that require the use of judgment and the application of
various assumptions including, but not limited to, prepayment assumptions and de fault
rafe assumpiions, and (i) the solicitation of valuations from third parties {iypically,
broker-dealers). Third-party valuation providers often utilize proprietary models that
are snbjective and also require the use o fjudgment and the application of variows assumptions
including, but not limited o, prepayment assumptions and default rate assumplions,
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Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 21, 2020

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

3. Yaluation {Continued)
The valetion levels are not necessarily an indication of the risk or Ligquidity associated with investing
in those securilies,

As of March 31, 2024, 100% of the portfolio was valued using NAV as a practical expedient.

4. Investments in AfMiliated Investment Companies

The following table summarntzes the Fund*s ivestments i affiliated mvestment companies (the “Investee
Fund™) as of March 31, 2020, The Fund did not directly pay any management fee or performance fee
to the Investes Fund for the year ended March 31, 2020, The Fund did not receive any distributions from
the affiliated investment companies during the vear ended March 31, 2020,

Change in
Fair Value Unrealized  Fair Value
At March Redemption  Realized Crain At March
Investiment 31, 2019 Purchases  Proceds Cradin {Laxss) 31, 2020
Westen Azeet Macra
Uipporitum e Alemative:
Fund, Lid. § L1173 § LAGETASLE 5169522043 § 243416 S (29.735,067) § SAT.TRAERD
Western Asset Macro Opportunitics Alternatives Fund, Lid. — The investment objective is to maximize

long -term total retumn, consistent with prudent investment management. Under normal market conditions,
the fund expects to mvest primarily i any combimation of the following: securities ssued or guarantesd
by LS, federal, state, local, and city governments, and their agencies, imstrumentalities, municipalities,
and subdivisions: securities ssued by LS, and non-LL 5, corporations {including Emerging Market
Izznersy, Hedemption iz permitted daily. A sharcholder may redeem all or a portion of its shares upon
15 business days" prior written notice to the Fund. There are no unfunded commitments due by the
Fund as of December 31, 2009, The Invesiee Fund iz domiciled in the Cayman [slands. The investment
in the Investee Fund is valued using the unandited net asset value of the Investee Fund as of March
31, 20240, The latest audited Dnancial statements of the Investee Fund for the year ended December
31, 2009 are available upon request from the Investiment Manager.
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Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

4. Investments in AfMiliated Investment Companies (Continued)
At March 31, 2020, the Fund's proportionate share of oomership in the following issuers, in which
other investment companies are invested, represented more than 5% of the Fund’s net assets,
Percent of
Net Assets  Proportiomate
(%) Fair Value
Government of Indonesia™™ 56 % 31,788,478
Giovernment of Mexico!" 6.2 35,124,551
Giovernment of Russia™ 8.8 49,811,667
United States Treasury Note Bond™ 15.5 %%, 148,360
EC8 - 204,873,056
1 These amounts represent the aggregate value of various securities bess than 5% of the Fund's net assets.
N Charges and Fees

Manager Fee

The Manager’s fee 15 acorued daily and payable quarterly in arrears af an annual rate of 0.00% of the

average daily net assets of the Fund.

Investment Manager Fee

The Investment Manager's fee is acerued daily and pay

{0,01%% of the average daily net assets of the Fund,

Trustee Fee
The Trustee fee is accrued daily and payable quarterly

able quarterly in arrears at an anmeal rate of

in arrears at an annual rate of 0.01% of the

average daily net assets of the Fund or a minimum of 525 (KK} per year.

Administrator Fee

The Administrator fee 13 accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of 0.001%6 of
the average daily net assets of the Fund or a minimum fee of 530,008 per vear and an additional fee
of S1L.000 annually for each additional class in excess of the first 3 classes.

Distributor Fee

The Distributor fee iz accread daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of 0.66% of the

average daily net assets of the Fund.

Agent Company Fee

The Agent Company fee i3 acerued daily and payable quarterly in arrears al an annual rafe of 0.05%

of the average daly net assets of the Fund.
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March 31, 2020
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6. Units of Participation

The following represents the Fund's unit activity for the year ended March 31, 2020
Year Ended March 31, 2020

LUSI} Monthly Class LS} Semi-annual Class JPY Monthly Class
Lnits Amount Units Amoumnt Units Amount
Uindte izzued 5070646 § 56,754 078 2515970 § 2006619 406264 § iGss
Uit sedespiod (3,861,307 {36, 14T827) (LIGLETY) (27.505.232) (45717 (38,682 236)
Nl increase 2009, 330 § 20,647,151 177,298 § 3,501 357 11,547 § §73.812
JPY Semi-annual Class Total
LUnits Amount L miit=s Amount
Linate sgued 216,48 § 22,260 549 2021928 § 149,668,194
Lints sedesmed (361,229 (E6.924.232) {7068, 925 {139.259.527)
Medincrease {decrease] {145 18138 {14663 681 2 I53 03 € 140 408 66T

7. Financial Highlights
Year Ended Mareh 31, 2020

LS UsD JPY IPY

Monthly  Semi-annual  Monthly  Semi-annual
Selected Per Unit Data Class Class Class Class
Met asset value, beginning of year 5 9258 5 11431 5 TI8TS 5 96.769
Net investment (lossy" {0,070y (0089 (0.615) (0.792)
Met realized and unrealized (loss) (0.283) {0,410 (2.423) (3071
Total income from investment operations ({L353) {0,499 [EXIEES] (3.803%)
Diistributions to unitholders {{1.61H1) 0000 {5.51T) {4 {HH}
Met asset value, end of year 5 8305 5 10932 5 69320 5 919
Total return %' {3.51) (4.37) {1.00) (3.99)
Ratios to Average Nel Assels
Expenses % 01.77 0.77 077 0.77
Met investment {loss)%o (1L74) (0.74) {0.78) (0L78)

A Net ivestment (loss) per unit has been calewlated based upon average wmits cutstanding for the year,

F Total returm caleulation is based on the value of a single unit of participation outstanding Broughowt (e vear. I represents
the percentage change in the met asset value per unit beroeen the beginning and end of the year. The tofal refurn is not
annualized for pertods less than a year.

The above ratios are caleulated for the participating units asa whole, An mdrvidual unitholder’s total
return and ratios may vary from these ratios based on the timaing of capital unit transactions.
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. Fund Investment Risks

Hedging Transactions Risk

Hedging strategies in general are usually mtended to limit or reduce investment risk, but can also be
expacted to liml or reduce the potential for profit. Notwithstanding the foregomg, to the extent that
assels of the Fund attnbutable to a particular Class of units are msufTicient o satisfy the labilities
associled with a hedging transaction with respect tosuch Class ofunits, such amount of the labilities
that excead such assetz may be borne by the other Classes of units of the Fund,

Liguidity Risk

The Fund may mvest in assets and dervatives that may not be able to readily available o sell or dispose
of, including securities whose disposition i restncted by secanties laws, The effect of liquidity risk
s particularly pronounced when low trading volume, lack of a markel maker, large position siee, or
legal restrictions (including daily price fuctuation hmits or “circuit breakers™ or an afTiliation with
the issuer ofa security ) limi or prevent the Fund s abality to mitiate a transaction, sellassets, or unwind
dermvative positions al desirable prices. The Fund s also exposed to hgudity nsk when it has an obligation
to purchase particular secunties ( for example, as a2 result olentering into reverse repurchase agreements,
wriling a put, or closing out a short position).

9. Contingencies and Commitments

Inthe normal course of busimess, the Fund enters into contracts that contam a vanety ol representations
and warranties, which provide general indemnifications. The Fund’s maximum exposure under these
arrangements is unknown, as this would involve future claims that may be made against the Fund that
have not yet ocourred. Based on experience, management 15 of the view that the risk of loss m connection
with these potential indemmification obligations 15 remote: however, there ean be no assurance that
neterial liabilities related 1o such obligations will not arise in the future that could adversely impact
the business of the Fund.

1, Other Matters

Anouthreak of respiratory disease caused by a novel coronavinis was first detected in China in December
2019 and subsequently spread globally. As of the date of the ssuance of these fimancial statements,
this coronavirus has resulied m closing borders, enhanced health screenmgs, healthcare service preparation
and delivery, quarantings, cancellations, and disruptions to supply chains, workflow operations and
consumer activity, as well as general concemn and uncertainty. The impact of this coronavirus may be
short term or may last for an extended period of time and result in a substantial economic downturn.
The impact of this outbreak, and other epidemics and pandemics that may arize in the future, could
negatively affect the worldwide economy, as well as the economizs of individual countries, individual
companies {including Fund service providers) and the market in general in significant and unforeseen
waya. Any such impact could adversely affect the Fund's performance.
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11. Subsequent Events

As of May 29, 2020, the date the fimancial statements were available to be issuad, no subsaquent events

or transactions had occurred that would have materially impacted the fnancial satements as
presented.
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2021
664,359,760.21 72,740,750,145
16,268,316.05 1,781,217,924
648,091,444.16 70,959,532,221
18,680,370
8,439,865
2,917,315
1,383,802
9.15 1,002
13.14 1,439
8,120
11,935
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2021
11,050,010 12 987
11,050,010 100,010
1,095
100 1,095
1,195 13 841
1CAAP
1940
SEC

2021 343
2021 10

183,357,531,023
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2020 2019
12 539,966 59,121 686,138 75,125
539,966 59,121 686,138 75,125
13 21,209,148 2,322,190 25,378,626 2,778,706
13 488,959 53,536 459,793 50,343
14 34,129,277 3,736,815 35,061,841 3,838,921
12,856,283 1,407,634 11,597,685 1,269,831
68,683,667 7,520,175 72,497,945 7,937,800
16 (18,219,000) (1,994,798)  (15,666,888) (1,715,368)
50,464,667 5,525,376 56,831,057 6,222,432
51,004,633 5,584,497 57,517,195 6,297,558
16 (23,651) (2.,590) (48,205) (5.278)
17 (626,622) (68,609) (1,623,200) (177,724)
50,354,360 5,513,299 55,845,790 6,114,556
18 11,050,010 1,209,866 11,050,010 1,209,866
39,304,350 4,303,433 44,795,780 4,904,690
50,354,360 5,513,299 55,845,790 6,114,556
2020 18
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2020 2019
76,184,956 8,341,491 73,349,360 8,031,021

(64,867,187) (7,102,308) (67,935,216) (7.,438,227)

927,544 101,557 945,363 103,508

(7,245) (793) (9,978) (1,092)

12,238,068 1,339,946 6,349,529 695,210

10 (2,729,498) (298,853) (1,271,910) (139,261)
9,508,570 1,041,093 5,077,619 555,949

44,795,780 4,904,690 49,718,161 5,443,641

9,508,570 1,041,093 5,077,619 555,949

1 (15,000,000) (1,642,350) (10,000,000) (1,094,900)
39,304,350 4,303,433 44,795,780 4,904,690
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102 11 12
11 12 102
11
12
2020 31
17
(M)
(i)
2020 2019

8,839,481 10,771,964
19,062,498 16,928,853
12,201,574 12,431,090
36,081,403 33,217,453

76,184,956 73,349,360
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184/266

2020 2019
196,730 189,847
6,199 4,070
1,696,788 1,767,752
24,598 (58,459)
7,245 9,978
441,911 457,518
24,666 24,666
(313,990) (281,796)
(108,450) (90,057)
266,706 106,744
(613,554) (680, 254)
2020 2019
17,473,977 16,883,324
2,443,109 2,418,062
160,362 533,030
876,477 920,985
20,953,925 20,755,401
2020 2019
23 26
14 15
24 25
61 66
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2020 2019

1,611,692 1,553,778

44,906 41,466

502,143 558,774
2,158,740 2,154,018

2019
2019
2019
2016 2017 2018 2019
173,535 2019 172,595

25

2019
14

2020 31
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1,910,985 2020 31
2019 2019 1,723,446
1,861,870 2019 1,601,888
182,490 2019 150,623
1,356,598 2019 1,224,549
194,071 2019 154,852
876,477 2019 920,985
2020 31 2019
10
2020 2019
2,482,332 1,329,789
309,818 20,986
(33,486) 6,116
2,758,664 1,356,891
(29,166) (84,981)
2,729,498 1,271,910
2020 31 2020 31

19 2019 19 2019
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2020 2019
12,238,068 6,349,529
19 2,325,233 1,206,410
29,211 29,801
309,818 20,986
(33,486) 6,116
135,028 9,998
(7,140) (1,401)
(29,166) -
2,729,498 1,271,910
177,188 282,605 459,793
(44,377) 73,543 29,166
132,811 356,148 488,959
i
2017 19
19

15,000,000 2019 10,000,000

149.99 2019 99.99
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12

13

2019 564,114 4,492 100,861 136,457 ,739,079 4,545,003
183,514 - - - 136,891 320,405
(277,649) - - - - (277,649)
2020 31 469,979 4,492 100,861 136,457 ,875,970 4,587,759
2019 388,400 1,107 29,814 - ,439,544 3,858,865
163,784 899 25,398 - 276,496 466,577
(277,649) - - - - (277,649)
2020 31 274,535 2,006 55,212 - ,716,040 4,047,793
2020 31 195,444 2,486 45,649 136,457 159,930 539,966
2019 31 175,714 3,385 71,047 136,457 299,535 686,138
45,220
2019 69,886
2020 2019
13,069,845 12,498,786
6,818,647 11,434,432
286,763 360,653
1,033,893 1,084,755
21,209,148 25,378,626
6,100,000 2019 10,800,000
2021 28 12 0.125
10
42,579 2019 80,005
488,959 2019 459,793

10
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2020 2019
3,503,823 3,322,718
34,949 19,569
3,827,531 2,649,966
10,852,697 9,674,635
18,219,000 15,666,888
23,651 48,205
23,651 48,205

2020 2019
34,949 19,569
23,651 48,205
58,600 67,774

2019
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2011 10
2020
10 2020
2020
2020 31 10 10
599,055 2019 1,462,200 2020 31
10 11 2020 31
2020 2019

1,623,200 309,861
_ 218,569
(48,101) 1,094,770
(948,477) _

31 626,622 1,623,200
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18
2020 2019
100,010
2019 100,010 100,010 100,010
10,950,000
2019 10,950,000 10,950,000 10,950,000
11,050,010 11,050,010
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 19
Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020

Registered No. 2479672

Mole 2020 2019
5 b3

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assels 2 539,964 GR35
TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 339 906 G861 38
CURRENT ASSETS
DEBTORS: amounts Talling due within one vear 13 21,209,148 25378626
DEBTORS: amounts falling due after more than one vear 13 AN 459793
Investmenis 14 34129277 35,061 841
Cash at bank and n hand 12,856,283 11,597,685

6 83 H6T 72497 245
CREDITORS: amowumis Taling due within one vear I (182190000 {15,000, 8HE)
MET CURRENT ASSETS 346 667 56,831,057
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 3100633 571517195
CREDITORS: amounts falling due afler more than one vear I (236510 {45.205)
Provisions Tor liabihnes 17 {620,622) (1,623,200
NET ASSETS 50,354 360 55,845,790
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capial 18 11,050,010 11,050,010
Retaned eammgs 39304 350 <, 795, 780
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 30,354 3640 55,845,790

The notes on pages 20 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements

The financial statements on pages |8 to 38 were approved for issue by the board and signed on its behalf
by:

g
[ ) i June 18, 2020
sromeimscane. M. Zelouf Date:
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 18

Statement of income and retained earnings

for the vear ended 31 March 2020
Registered No. 2479672

Nole 2020 2004
5 b
Turmnover 4 Tia, 154,956 73349 3600
Administrative expenses 5.6,7.89  (AEGTIET) (67.935.216)
Interest receivable and similar income 5 927544 045363
Imterest pavable and similar expenses 3 (7.245) (9978}
Profit before taxation 12,238,068 6,349,520
Tax on profit 1k [2,729.49%) (1.271.910)
Profit for the financial vear 9,508,570 5077619
Retamed eamings al the begmnmg of the vear 44,795 TR HUTHE 1G]
Profit for the financial vear 0408 570 5077619
Dividends 1 {15,000,000) { 10,000,000}
Retamed eamings at the end of the year 39,304,350 44,793 TH0

All amounts arc in respect of continuing activities.

The notes on pages 20 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020 20

1. General information

Western Asset Management Company Limited (“the Company ™), 15 an investment manager, principally
providing investment management services to both extemal clients and to clients of its affiliates. The
Company 15 authorised by the FCA and makes its PFillar 3 disclosures on its website
LRV ".'L!,:“i!k'l'ﬂ,'lﬁE;! ONTY,

The Company is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled under the laws of England
and Wales, The address of its prmcipal place of business 15 |0 Exchange Squarc, Pnmrose Strect,
London EC2ZA 2EN, The ultimate parent company 15 Lege Mason Inc. ("Parent™).

2. Statement of compliance

These individual financial statements of the Company have been prepared i compliance with United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland™ (“FRS 1027, and the Companies Act 2004,

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied i the preparation of these financial statements are et out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the vears presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
These separate financial statements are preparcd on a going concem basis, under the histerical cost
convention, as modified by the recogmition of certaun financial assets and habihines measured ar
fair value,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certam
eritical accounting estimates. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical expenence and other factors, including expectations of future cvents that are belicved to
be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting cstimates will, by definition
seldom equal the related actual results. Included within provisions for liabilities is an amount
related to dilapidation costs. which the Company expeets to incur under the terms of its tenancy
agreement. The amount provided for 15 reasonable in determining the scale of restoration works
that will be enforced by the landlord at the end of the Company’s lease. The amount provided for
is based on management's best estimate and based on an internal assessment. Further details are
provided in Note |7

(b

—

Exemptions for qualifving entities under FRS 102
FRS 102 allows a qualifving cntitv certain disclosure exemptions, subject to certain conditions,
which have been complicd with,

The Company has taken advantage of the following exemptions:

(i) from disclosing a reconeiliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end
of the penod;

{11} from prepanng a statement of cash flows, on the basis that it 15 a gualifving entity and the
statement of cash flows included in the consolidated financial statements of the Parent
includes the Company 's cash flows:
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020 21

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

(i) from disclosing details of financial instruments, on the basis that it 15 a qualifving entity and
diselosure of financial instruments such as trade receivables and trade pavables are included
in the consolidated financial statcments of the Parcnt;

(v} from disclosing detals of certain share-based pavment armangements required under FRS 102
seetion 26 in respeet of shares based pavments of the Parent issued to emplovees of the
Company by the Parent which are presented in those financial statements;

(v} from disclosing the Company s kev management personne] compensation in total, as required
by FRS 102 paragraph 33.7

(c) Functional currency
The functional and reporting currency of the Company 15 US Dollar, as the Dircctors consider this
1o be the most appropriate currency for the Company’s business.

{d) Forcigm currency translation
Foreign currency monetary assets and labilities are translated into US Dollars at the balance sheet
date. Transactions duning the penod expressed in forcign currencies ane translated into US Dollars
at the rate of exchange ruling in the month in which they occur. Any foreign exchange differences
are taken to the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings in the vear in which they arise.

Foreign currency non-monetary assets are carried in the balance sheet translated mio US Dollars at
historic rates of exchange. This is determined using the month end rate of exchange for the month
in which they were acquired.

The £/ US Dollar rate used at the balance sheet date 15 1. 239830 (2019: 1.299733)
The average rate for the balance sheet for the year was 1. 270730 (2019: 1.30%8142)

(¢} Revenue recognition
Turnover or revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and
represents the amount receivable for investment management services rendered. net of any rebates
allowed and value added taxes. Revenue i respect of performance fees is recognised in the
fimancial staterents at the end of the related contractual performance period when all performance
ertena have been met and the outcome of the transaction can be measured rehably.

(fy Emplovee benefits
The Company provides a range of benefits to emplovees. including annual bonus armangements,

paid hohday arrmangements and defined contnbution pension plans.,

(1) Short Term Benefits
Short term benefits, mcludmg hobiday pay and other siuilar non-monctary benefits, ane
recogmsed as an expense in the penod i which the serviee 15 receved,

(i) Jmcentive Plans
The Company operates an Emploves Benefit Trust ("EBT™) as part of the overall
remuncration strategy for emplovees. Annvally, a bonus award, as determined by the
Company, may be paid into the EBT. Where the EBT is considered to remain under the control
of the Company, the assets and liabihoes of the EBT are included i the Company”s financial
statements until they become fully vested and are paid to the relevant emplovees. See Notes 7
and 8 for further detail.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial ststements for the vear ended 31 March 2020 22

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

() Emploves benefits feomtimeedl

(i) Frceniive Plans (contineed)
The Company has s¢t up a Group Personal Pension Plan, which is a defined contnibution
scheme and is administered by a third party. Contributions to the pension scheme are charged
to the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings. Sce Nate 9 for further details.

(i) Annwual Bowvis Plan
The Company operates an annual bonus plan for emplovecs. An expense is recogmised in the
Statement of Income and Retained Eamings when the Company has a legal or constructive
oblizgation to make pavments under the plan as a result of past cvents and a reliable cstimate of
the ohligation can be made

{iv) Share Based Pavments
Under the EBT, the Parent awards cligihle emplovees restricted shares of the Parent, The
Company has accounted for such share-based pavments in line with FRS 102 as equity settled
transactions. The recharge from the Parent is recorded as an intercompany pavable position.

with a corresponding charge in the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings as services are
rendered,

Under the Parent’s share option plan, the far value of stock options 1ssued are measured at
arant date, then, penodically as shares vest and emplovees become unconditionally entitled to
the shares, an emplovees expense is recognised, with ne adjustments recorded for changes in
market value of the Parent for the shares granted.

() Taxation
Taxation ¢xpense for the penod comprises current and deferred tax recognised in the reporting
penod. Tax s recogmsed in the Statement of Income and Retamed Eamings.

Current or deferred taxation assets and liabilities are not discounted.

(1) Current Tox
Current tax is the amount of corporation tax pavable in respeet of the taxable profit for the vear
or prior vears. Tax is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the period end

Management penodicallv evaluates positions taken in tax retums with respect o situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropnate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authontics.

fii) Deferred Toax
Deeferred tax anses from timing differences. These timing differences anse from the inclusion
of income and expenses in tax assessments in penods different from those in which they are
recognised in financial statements,

Deferred tax 1s reeogmsed on all iming differences at the reporting date. Unrelieved tax losses

and other deferred tax assets are only recognised when it is probable that they will be recovered
against the reversal of deferred tax liabilitics or other future taxable profits.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020 23

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

fii) Deferred Tox foontinmed)
Deferred tax 15 measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the period end and that are expeeted to apply to the reversal of the tming difference.

(h) Tangible fixed asscts
The cost of tangible fixed assets is their purchase cost, including any incidental expenses of
acquisition. Depreciation is caleulated o write off the cost of the tangible fixed asscts on a straight
line basis over their expected coonomic lives. The principal annual rates used for the purpose ane:

IT & Communications equipment 33%
Office equipment 20-33%

Depreciation is charged on a monthly basis and a full month’s charge is made in the month
following acquisition.

Leaschold improvements are depreciated over the remaining life of the relevant lease. Depreciation
for artwork 15 not provided as no diminution of its value 15 expected.

(1) Dividends
Dividends and other distnbutions to the Company™s sharcholder are recogmised as a hability in the
financial statements in the period in which the dividends and other distributions are approved by
the board of dircctors, These amounts are recognised in the Statement of Income and Retained
Eamings.

() Imvestments
The Company’s investment in the EBT and Western Asset Liguidity Funds ple {"WALF"y arc
current asset mvestments and are stated at fair value. Changes i fair value are recogmised as fair
value adjustments through the Statement of Income and Retained Earmings,

k) ; h equival
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash i hand, deposits held at call wath banks, other shor-term
highly liquid investments with original matuntics of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

(I} Leased assets
At meeption the Company assesses agreements that transfor the right to use assets. The assessment
considers whether the arrangement is, or contains, a lease based on the substance of the
arrangement, See Note 19 for further detals,

(1) Finance feased assels
Leases of assets that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership arg
classified as finance leases. Finanee leases are capitalised at commencement of the lease as
assets at the fair value of the leased asset. Incremental dircet costs, incurred in negotiating and
armanging the lease. are included in the cost of the asset,

Assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful life of the

assct. Assets are asscsscd for impairment at cach reporting date, The capital element of lease
obligations is recorded as a lability on inception of the arrangement
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020 24

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

(I} Leased assets feontinned)

(i) Clperating leased assers
Leasces that do not transfier all the nsks and rewards of ownershap are classified as operating
leases. Pavments under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Income and Retained
Eamings on a straight-ling basis over the period of the lease.

(i} Lease incentives
Incentives received to enter into an operating lease are eredited to the Statement of lncome
and Retained Earmnings. to reduce the lease expensce, on a straight-ling basis over the penod of
the lease,

{m) Financial instruments
The Company has chosen 1o adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial
nstruments.

Scction | 1 { Basic Finarcial fnstriments) and Section 12 (Chker Finoncial fastrumenss) werg issucd
under FRS 102 and provide guidance for recognising, derceognising, assessing impairment, and
measuring and disclosing financial instruments. Seetion |1 applics to basic financial instraments,
such as trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other pavables, bank loans,
intereompany pavables and common and preference shares. Section 12 applies 1o other more
complex financial instruments and transactions such as derivatives. including curreney futures and
forward forcign exchange contracts,

Basic financial instruments are generally recogmised at cost or amortised cost.

Denvatives are complex financial nstruments and are imitially recognised at fair value on the date
a denvative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Changes
m the farr value of denvatives are recogmsed i Statement of Income and Retained Eamings as
appropriate. The Company has no derivatives at 31 March 2020,

(n) Provisions
Provisions are recopmsed when the Company has a present legal or constructive abligation as a
result of past events: it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably,

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
moncy and the nsks speaific to the obligation. See Note 17 for further detanls,

Contingent liabilitics arise as a result of past cvents when (1) it is not probable that there will be an
outflow of resources of that the amount cannot be reliably measured at the reporting date or (i) the
exigtence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-gecurrence of uncertam fulure events not
wholly within the Company's control. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the financial
statements unless the probability of an outflow 15 remote or the outflow is immatenal
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4.

Turnover

Turnover, which is stated net of value added tax, represents the amounts reecivable for the management
of investment portfolios for clients and an allocation of tumover from the Company’s affiliates where
the Company 15 responsible for servacing the chent

The geographical location of the clients is analysed as follows:

2020 2019
b &
United Kingdom 8,839 451 10,771,964
United States of Amernica 19,062 498 16,928 853
Euwrope (excluding United Kngdom) 12201574 12431000
Rest of the World 36,081 403 33217453
Tia, ] B 050 73,349 3060
Operating profit
2020 g
b3 £

The operating profit is stated after chargmg / (crediting)

Auditors' remuneration - awdil services 94,730 189,847
Auditors' rermumeration - other services pursuant to kegislation 6,194 40070
Lease of office premises 1686, THE 1.767.752
Loss / (gam) on foreion exchange 24.59% (58450
[mterest pavable and similar charges 1245 Q9.4978
Depreciation - on tangble owned fived assets 441911 457518
Deprecation - on tangble fived assets held under fmance kases 2666 246540
[ntercst receivable (313.9400) (281,79
[mcome from current assct invesiments

- Realised gains - EBT [ 108 450) (90057
- Unrealised loss 266,706 106,744
- Ciains on investments - WALF [613.554) (680.254)
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6.

Information regarding directors and employees

Emplovment costs incurred by the Company and incleded in admimistrative expenses comprise:

2020 2w
b1 5
Wages and salaries 17473977 16,883,324
Social secunly costs 2443100 2415062
Restnicted stock and stock options m parent Company Jedh 362 533,030
Other pension costs BT6477 20,985
20953 925 20,755 401

The average monthly number of persons (including executive directors) emploved by the Company
during the vear was:

2020 2019
Mo, Mo,
By activity
Porifolio management 23 26
Marketing & client services 14 15
Admmnstration 24 25
Gl &b

Agaregate directors’ emoluments related to the highest pad director are as fallows:

2020 2019
b3 s
Emzluments 1,611,692 1,553,778
Pension contributions 44 906 41 466
Employee deferred benefits 502,143 558,774
Contribution to Empleyee Deferred Incentive Plan - -
2158740 2154018

Retirement benefits are accruing o 1 (2009 1) director under a defined contnbution scheme. Share
options were exercised by nil (2019: ml) directors during the vear.

The emoluments of the other 2 directors (2019: 2) are paid by the Parent or other group companies which
make no recharges to the Company. These two direetors are emplovees and [/ or directors of the Parent
and / or a number of fellow subsidiarics and it is not possible to make an accurate apportionment of their
emoluments in respect of the Company, Accordimgly, the above detals include no emoluments in respect
of these two directors,

Addionally, dunng the vear 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2019 EDIP schemes partially vested and a cash
amount of $173 335 (2019: $172,595) was paid by the Company to the hghest paid director.
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7. Share-based payments

The following sharg-based award programme, which is settled in equity of the Parent 1s in operation by
the Company for eligible executive dircctors and keyv emplovees,

Lege Mason Ire, restriclied stock wnif plan

The Parent 1ssues restricted stock units to certain emplovees subject to continued employment with the
Company. Vestng occurs over a four vear penod with 25% of the granted restricted stock units
becoming vested and distributed in shares, which are avalable 1o be sold within a few days of the vesting
date each year. Ownership of the restricted stock units are transferred to the emplovee once vested.

&. Incentive plans

The Company has one active EBT for the emplovee deferred incentive plan.

The trustees appointed to “The Western Asset Management Company International Employvee
Deferred Incentive Plan”™ ("EDIP™) are “Intertrust Group™.

There 15 no cash balance in the current vear (2019: 80) held in the EBT, Investments held by the
EBT are disclosed in Note 14

Ag at 31 Mareh 2020, awards made under the EDIP vest between one and four vears, and any
unvested awards are forfeited if an emplovee leaves the Company for any reason other than
retirement. All forfeieres revert to the Company. The expense related to the awards and any gains
or losses associated with them are recorded in the vear in which the awards vest, The method of
settlement of the awards either in cash or the Parent’s issued restricted stock is at the discretion of
the Western Asset compensation committce.,

EDIP awards totalling £1.910,983 were made to senior emplovees attributable to the financial vear
ended 31 March 2020 (in May 2019, EDIP awards made for the 2019 financial vear: $1.723_.446).

An acerual for awards totalling $1.861.870 (2019 51601 888) is included in these financial
statcments, and this total amount will be contributed to the EDIP. In addition 5182 4490 (2014
S150,623) has been provided in respect of emplover’s national insurance pavable on these awards,

The expense recorded in the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings for the EDIP s 51,356, 598

(2009 51.224.549) and the emplover's national insurance on this amounts to S194.071 (2019;
S154.852),

9. Pension

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The scheme is a Group Personal
Pension Plan which is run and administered by Scottish Widows. an unrelated third party.

The pension cost charge represents contributions pavable by the Company to the fund and

amounted to $RT6.4TT (2019 S920.985). At 31 March 2020 there were no pension contributions
in arrears (2019 540,
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MNotes to financial ststements for the vear ended 31 March 2020

10, Tax on profit

a. Tax on profit

Current vear lax charge

Adpstments in respect of prior periods

Adpstments m respect of FX difference of prior periods
Current vear tax charge

Delerred taxation - current vear tming differences
Total tax on profits

b. Beconciliation of tax charse

28
2020 2019
5 5
2482332 1.329.789
J9EIR 20986
{33 A486) G, 146
275806064 1,356,891
(29, 166:) (£4.981)
2729498 1.271.910

Tax assessed for the vear ended 31 March 2020 is higher than (2019: higher than) the standard rate of
corporation tax m the UK for the vear ended 31, March 2020 19% (2019: 19%)

Prafit before taxation

Expected tax at standard rate of 19% (2019 19%)
Effects of

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Adjustments m respect of prior periods

Adjustments mrespeet of FX difference of prior periods

Adpustments for reduction m corporation ax rale on iming

differences

Unprosded adjustment in respect of current vear tax charge

Deferred tax ems
Total vear tax charge

2020 2019
3 5
12,235,068 6,349,529
2325033 1,206,410
29211 20801
309818 20,986
(33.486) 6,116
135,028 9,998
(7.140) (1.401)
(29.166) =
2.720.498 1271910

The current vear tax charge has not been adjusted by group relief from other group compames as no

group relief has been granted.
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10, Tax on profit (conrinued)

¢. Deferred tax
Fried Assets Emplovee Total
remuneration
5 b b3
Assetas at | Apnl 2019 177,188 282 605 450,743
Current year charge/{ credit) (44,3771 73,543 29,166
Asset as at 31 March, 2020 1323811 356,148 488 959

The uming differences related to: (1) aceelerated capital allowanecs on fixed assets: and (i) the issuance
of deferred compensation awards to emplovees on which a corporate tax deduction can be taken when
the deferred compensation vests and 15 distnbuted to participants,

The Directors consider that it is morce likely than not that there will be sufficient taxable profits in the
future such as to realise the defeorred tax asset and therefore the asset has been recozmised i these
financial statcments,

d. Tax mate changes

The tax rate for the current vear is the same as the prior vear as there was no change in the UK
Corporation tax rate, which remained at 19% since | April 2007, On the basis that the UK Corporation
tax wall remain at 19% from | April 2020, the Company s deferred tax balances have been effected at
the same rate.

11. Dividends

A dividend of 515 million was declared and paid duning the vear to the Company’s sole sharcholder
Western Asset Management (Cavman) Heldings Limited (2019 $10 million), equating to $149.99 per
ordinary share (2019: £99.99) and there are no amounts ocutstanding in relation to dividends included
in these financial statements.
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12. Tangible assets

&
2 jgilions Fumiture ilice. Lepschokl
Eguipmeni & Fpaures “guiprne An OV eEnLE Toaanl
3 5 g £ i £

Cevsi
Az at | Apal 2019 56,114 4492 100851 156,457 3730009 4,545,003
Additons 183514 - - - 136,891 3M0405
sposals (277 6 - - - - (277 6459
As at 31 March 2020 469979 4492 100261 136,457 3ET59T0 4,587,759
Accunndlared depreciation
Asat 1 Apnl 2019 s A0 1,107 29K14 - 343554 IESEEAS
Charge for the financl 163,784 bt 25398 . 16,49 466,577
veqr
Dhzposals (2TT 649 - - - - (277,649
M oat 31 Margh 2020 274,535 200G 35212 . 3,716,040 4,047,793
.‘I.'n:-ﬂ' ﬁur.l.ﬂ.' w:.l'nr
31 March 2020 195,444 2486 45649 136,457 1 569300 539 0045
31 March 219 175,714 3345 1,047 136,457 29535 GHG, 138

The net book value of tangible assets includes an amount of 545220 (2019: $69.886) in respect of office
cauipment held under finance leases.

207/266



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DocuSign Envelope 1D: 120081 16-8A99-48FD-B250-06CFEESAB3SF

WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial ststements for the vear ended 31 March 2020 3l

13. Debtors
2020 2019

Amounts faling due within one vear

Trade debtors 13,065 545 12 498 786
Amounts owed by group undertakings AT 11434432
Other debtors 286,763 IR0633
Prepayvments and accrued meome 1,033,393 1LOB4,735

21200, 148 25 378626

Amounts owed by group undertakimgs includes a $6. 1 million (2019: $10.8 million) loan to an affiliate,
The loan bears interest at 12-month LIBOR plus (125% with a maturity date of May 28, 2021, The
remaining balanec is unsecured, interest free, has no fixed date of repayment and is repavable on
demand,

The Company makes available to all emplovees interest-free season ticket loans which are repayable
b ten monthly instalments. The balance of 542,579 (2019 S80.005) is included in other debtors,

Amounts falling due after more than one vear from Deferred Tax is S488 950 (2019 $459.793). See
Mote 10 for further details.

14. Investments

The Company has an investment of £3 267 180 (2019 $2.847.191) in EDIP. This plan is invested ina
range of investment funds managed by Westem Assct.

During the vear, the EBT generated realised gains of $ 108 430 (2019: £90,057), and unrealised loss of
S266.706 (2019 loss of $106.743),

The Company has an investment in the US Dollar fund in the WALF series. The WALF fund 15 a highly
rated money-market fund and has same dav liquidity. The principal investment objective of the fund is
the preservation of capital. This investment is cammied at fair value and at the balance sheet date was
S30,862 088 (2019; $32,214,650), The share class in which the Company is invested, is a no-fee share
class. thereby maximising the Company’s retumn. The Company provides imvestment management
services to the fund.

The Company classifics its financial assets within the EBT, which are shares and other variable-vield
secuntics ab fair value through Statement of Income and Retained Eamings.

The Company classifics its financial assets within WALF at fair value through Statement of Income
and Retained Eamings.
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4. Investments fcontimued)

Financial asscts designated at fair value through Statement of Income and Retained Eamings at
inception are thosc that arc managed and whose performance is evaluvated on a fair value basis.
Information about these financial assets is provided internally on a fair value basis to the Company’s
kev management personnel, The Company’s strategy is to mvest in funds, designated at fair value
through Statement of Income and Retained Eamings upon initial recognition.

The fair valugs of financial instruments taded in active markets are based on gquoted bid prices on the
balance sheet date. A market 15 regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer broker, industry group, pricing service, o regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occumng market transactions on an am's length basis, As the funds
invested in by the Company are priced daily based on net asset value (NAV) with subseriptions and
redemplions cecurring at NAV, the funds are considered to be measured at a quoted price in an active
markct,

Met gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of fair-valucd financial assets, are presented
in the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings, together wath related interest and dividend income
within “Interest recervable and similar income™ in the period in which they arise,

The fair value of financial instraments traded in active markets is based on quoted bid prices at the
balance sheet date and these secuntics ane included in (a)

The Company closclv monitors the valeation of assets in markets that mayv become less liquid.
Determiming whether a market is active requires the exercise of judgment and 15 determined based on
facts and circumstances of the market for the mvestment being measurcd, The Company does not hold
investments where the investments have no active market.

The Company follows the FRS 102 hicrarchy 1o estimate fair value:

{a) The best evidence of fair value 15 a quoted price for an identical asset in an active market.

(b} When quoted prices are unavailable, the price of a recent transaction for an identical asset
provides evidence of fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in ceonomic
circumstances or a significant lapse of time sinee the transaction took place.

(c) If the market for the asset is not active and recent transactions of an identical asset on their own
arc not a good estimate of fair value, an entity estimates the fair value by using a valuation
technique.
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14, Investments fcontimued)

The tables below present investments which inelude the EBT asscts carried at fair value.

2020 (a) (b} {c) Total

Fair value throush profit and loss b 5 S b

Listed mvestments

- Imsh Stock Exchange 34129277 - - 340129277
Total assels 34,129 277 - - 34, 129 277

2019 (a) (b} (e} Total

Fair value through profit and loss b 5 5 b

Listed mvestments

- Imsh Stock Exchange 35061841 - - 35,061 841
Total asscts 35061541 - - 35,061 841

During the vears ended 31 Mareh 2020 and 2019, the Company did not hold investments eategorised as (b)
ar {c) and correspondingly there were no transfers involving (b or (c).

15. Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Company’s activitics ¢xpose it to a vanety of financial nsk; market nsk (including curreney nisk.,
fair value mnterest rate risk, cash flow interest rate nsk and price nsk), credit nsk and hguidity nsk. The
Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and secks to minimise potential adverse cffects on the Company's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by an internal nsk management department adhenng to principles and
policies approved by the board of directors. The Company has written principles for overall nsk
management, as well as written policies covering specific arcas, such as forcign exchange nisk, interest
rate risk, credit risk use of derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess higuidity.

210/266



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DocuSign Envelope 1D: 120081 16-8A99-48FD-B250-06CFEESAB3EF

WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial ststements for the vear ended 31 March 2020 34

15, Financial risk management (continmed)
(a) Market nsk

(i) Forcign exchange nisk

The Company, being US Dollar functional, and operating imtemationally, is ¢xposed to foreign
exchange nsk arising from various curreney exposures, primarily to Sterling. Euro and Yen.
Forcign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised asscts and
liabilitics which are denominated in a cumrency that is not the entity”s functional curreney. The
estimated fair value of derivative instruments reflects the estimated amount the Company would
receive of pav in an amm’s length transaction. The amount is determined using quoted prices
from independent third partics. Durning the vear the Company nutigated its forcizn exchange nsk
by the use of dervative mstruments administered by an affiliate, specifically curreney forward
conteacts. During the vear, the Company made a forcign exchange loss of $24,398 (2019 gain
of $38.459),

{11} Price risk
The Company’s investments held by the EBT are diversified in accordance with the guidelines
of the EBT, As all investments are held by the EBT, the nsk and reward of investment retums
are borne entirely by the EBT s participants, the Company is not exposed to price nisk relating
to its EBT. The Company is not exposed to commaodity price risk. The Company is indirectly
cxposed price nsk as revenues may fluctuate based on assets under management, inferest rates
and the retums of the fixed income markets.

(b) Credit nsk

Credit nsk is managed on a Company-wide basis. Credit nsk anses from cash deposits with banks
and financial institutions, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments, credit exposures to
clients from outstanding fee receivables and loans made to group Companics. All the Company’s
banking relationships are with highly rated banks for shont term deposits and are limited to those
with a Moody's rating of at least Baal. or with a Standard and Poor’s rating of at least BBB+. The
Company asscsses the credit quality of clients. taking mto account their financial statements,
regulatory position, past expencnce and other factors. Intercompany loans, including cxisting
loans, may be considered only after assessing the impact projected cash flows under stress testing
scenartos and ensuring the Company s mimimum hguidity tolerance levels are mamtaimed.

(c) Liguidity risk
Liquidity misk is the risk that eash may not be available at a reasonable cost to pay obligations when
due. The Company performs monthly cash hqudity momtonng azamst set linits (o0 ensure funds
are available to meet such requirements

{(d)y Cash flow and far value interest rate nsk

Ag the Company’s only significant imterest-bearing asset 15 cash, the Company’s income and
aperating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates,

211/266



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 120061 16-8A99-48FD-B250-06CFEESAB3SF

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED

MNotes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020

16. Creditors

Amounts falling due within one vear:
Amounts owed to group undentakings
Obligations under finance keases

Taxation and social security
Accruaks and deferred income

Amounts falling due after more than one year,

Obligations under finance keases

The net finance lease obligations 1o which the Company is committed are:

[n one year or less
Between one and two years

33
200 2019
% s
3503823 3322718
3049 19569
3827531 2049 966
10852697 9aT4 635
18,2149 (KK) 15,666, 888
RET ] | 48,205
23651 48 205
2020 2019
b 5
34949 19,569
23,651 48205
38,600 67774

The total value of finance leases repavable by instalments, any part of which falls duc afler more than

five vears 1s ml (2001%: mil).

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsceured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayvment and

are repavable on demand.
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17. Provisions for liabilities

Where leaschold office space becomes vacant or is sublet at market rates below the Company’s master
lease rates, the Company provides for all costs, net of anticipated or contracted income, to the end of the
lease or the anticipated date of the disposal or sublease. This provision relates to office space in 10
Exchange which was sublet in 2011 and 15 surplus to the Company’s requirements, The provision is
expected to be utilised over the life of related leases to 2020,

The Company is currently a tenant of 10 Exchange Square and was duc to vacate in carly fiscal vear
20200 prior to signing of now tenancy agreements m May 2020, There 15 a clause in the tenancy
agreement relating to dilapidation work which must be undertaken before the property is vacated. The
amounts provided are based on the current ¢stimate of future costs determined on the basis of the present
condition of the property. In amiving at this provision, the expected cash flows have been adjusted by
assigning an appropriate probability weighting based on the level of dilapidation work likely o be
cammied out

For the vear ended 31 March 2020, a provision of $399033 (2019 §1,462,2000 has been made for
estimated costs of the dilapidation repairs pertaining to level 10 at 10 Exchange Square. At 31 March
2020, the dilapidations provision of levels % and 11 at 10 Exchange Square was written down as the
obligation to retum the property to it orginal condition was released by the landlord. The decrease in
provision is fully recognised in the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings during the vear ended
31 March 2020,

2020 X9
£ s
Carrving amouni at 1 April 1,623,200 309,861
Amounts reclassified from accruals and deferred meome - 218560
Amounts (milisedy'charged during the vear (48,101} L0770
Amownts released during the vear (48.47T) -
Balance at 31 March 626,622 1.623.200
18. Called up share capital
2020 2019
.1 &
Iszued, called up and fulk paid
TOOOTE (200149 100.010) ordinary shares of $1 each EEEH Y 10K, 004
10,950,000 (2019: 10.950,000) redeenable preference shares of 51 10,950,000 10950, 000
each
11050000 110500140

The preference shares camy no rights to participate in the profits of the Company, and no voting rights.
The Company may redeem the preference shares at par, at any time subject to the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006, On redemption, and at the diserction of the Directors, the preference shares may
be converted to ordinary shares of similar par value.
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19. Financial commitments

The Company had the following future mimimum lease pavments under non-cancellable operating leases
for cach of the following periods:

2020 2019
b s
Land and buildings payments due
Mot later than one vear - 1908217
Later than one year and not later than five years - 38579
- 1.946,79

The Company signed a 15 vear lease for office premises which was effective May 2005, and under the
terms of which the Company had an initial rent free period of three vears

The Company signed a 10 vear lease for office premises which was effective May 2020, and under the
terms of which the Company has an imitial rent free peried to 31 January 2022, The rent pavable under
the lease will be subject to review in May 2025,

Provision for rental pavable was made in the financial statements during the rent free period. and this is

bemng released to the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings so as to spread this benefit evenly over
the period of the lease.

20. Related party disclosures

The Company 15 exempt from disclosing related party transactions with other companics that are wholly
owned within, and reported on the consolidated financial statements of, the group,

Consolidated financial statements of the group, in which the Company is included are publicly available,
as disclosed in Note 21

2

. Controlling parties

The immediate parent undentaking is Westem Asset Management (Cavman) Holdings Limited.

The ultimate controlling panty s Legg Mason Ine.. a Company incorporated and registered in the United
States of Amernica and listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

The enlv growp e which the Company’s results are consolidated 15 the group that 15 headed by Legs
Mason, Inc. Copies of the consolidated financial statements of Legg Mason, Ine. are available from 104
Intemational Drve, Baltimore, MD 21202, USA.

Further information can be found on the Legg Mason, Inc. website "www leggmason.com”™ under
“Investor Relations”,
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22. Post balance sheet events

In February, 2020 Franklin Templeton announced the purchase of Lege Mason, and its affiliates,
including Western Assct. Western Asset will retain full investment independence and organisational
autonomy. Franklin  Templeton recognises the importance of maintaining Western  Asset's
independence. Change of ownership will take place once the deal closes, expected to be i the second
or third guarters of fiscal vear ending 31 March 2021, The Company has mformed all clients of the
ownership change and has forwarded formal notices andlor requests for consents to clients where
requircd by regulabon or contracts.

The Company signed a 10 vear lease for office premises which was effective May 2020, and under the
terms of which the Company has an mitial rent free penod o 31 January 2022, The rent pavable under
the lease will be subject to review in May 2025,

While business plan goals and objectives are primarily long term, the current extraordinary
circumstances relating o COVID-19 mean that the Company wall continually assess the business plan
and budget for the coming financial vear in light of the current market conditions and their expected
impact on the Company's business.
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Independent Auditors® Report

The Trustee
Western Asset Total Return Opportunities, a sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Western Asset Total Return
Opportunities, which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities and schedule of
investments as of March 31, 2020, and the related statements of operations and changes in
net assets for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management®s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors®
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity"s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity"s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Western Asset Total Return Opportunities as of March 31,
2020, and the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.
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KPMG
Cayman Islands
May 29, 2020
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Report of Independent Auditors

To BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Western
Asset Total Return Opportunities

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Western Asset Total Return
Opportunities (a sub-trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds) (the “ Fund” ), which comprise
the statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of investments, as of March
31, 2021, and the related statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the year
then ended.

Management®s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal
control relevant to the Fund"s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Western Asset Total Return Opportunities as of March 31,
2021, and the results of its operations and changes in its net assets for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America.
PricewaterhouseCoopers

May 27, 2021
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Independent auditors® report to the members of Western Asset Management Company Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion, Western Asset Management Company Limited"s financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the company®s affairs as at 31 March 2020 and
of its profit for the year then ended;

< have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ilreland”, and
applicable law); and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual report and financial
statements (the “ Annual Report” ), which comprise: the statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2020; the statement of income and retained earnings for the year ended 31 March
2020; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the
significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ( 1SAs
(UK)™) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK are further described in the
Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC"s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which 1SAs (UK)
require us to report to you when:
e the Directors™ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is not appropriate; or
< the Directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the company®s ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from
the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
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However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not
a guarantee as to the company®s ability to continue as a going concern.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the
financial statements and our auditors® report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the
other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material
inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude
whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors® Report, we also considered whether the
disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the
audit, ISAs (UK) require us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors” report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information
given in the Strategic Report and Directors® Report for the year ended 31 March 2020 is
consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic
Report and Directors" Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors® responsibilities, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the
applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The
Directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the
company”s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditors”® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the FRC"s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditors® report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company®s
members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for
no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other requiered reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
e certain disclosures of directors™ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Colleen Local (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

18 June 2020
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